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ZUARI CEMENT LIMITED

Regd. Office: Krishna Nagar, Yerraguntla, Y.S.R. District,

Andhra Pradesh-516 311
Phone. No. 080-41194408; E-mail Id: arjun.dutta@zcltd.com; Website:
WWWw.zuaricements.com

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 22"9 (Twenty Second) Annual General Meeting
of the Members of Zuari Cement Limited will be held at 3:30 PM on Tuesday, the
20 September 2022, through Video Conferencing ("VC”) / Other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM) to transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2022, together with the report of
Directors and Auditors thereon be and are hereby considered, approved and
adopted.”

. To consider, approve and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with
or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2022, together with Auditors Report
thereon be and are hereby considered, approved and adopted.”

. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Soek Peng Sim (DIN: 06958955) who

retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for reappointment; and for
this purpose, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that Ms. Soek Peng Sim (DIN: 06958955) who retires by rotation
and being eligible has offered herself for reappointment be and is hereby
reappointed as Director of the Company subject to retirement by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To reappoint Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper as Managing Director of the Company

and in this regard if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s) the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203,
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules made thereunder including any statutory modification(s)
and/or re-enactment thereof, consent of the members of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to the reappointment of Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper
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(holding DIN 01527371) as Managing Director of the Company for a further
period of three years with effect from 01 August 2022 to 31 July 2025 upon
the principal terms and conditions set out in the explanatory statement annexed
hereto.

5. To appoint Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain as Non-Executive Director of the Company
and in this regard if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s) the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 161 and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain (Holding DIN: 09561918), who was
appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors of the Company
with effect from 10 June 2022 and who holds office of Director up to the date
of this Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Articles of Association of the Company and in respect of whom
the Company has received a notice in writing from a shareholder under Section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of
Director be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation.”

6. To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. R.J. Goel & Co., Cost Accountants
as Cost Auditors and in this regard if thought fit to pass, with or without
modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provision of section 148(3) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 consent of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for the payment of remuneration to M/s. R.J. Goel & Co., Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000026), appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the Cost Accounting Records
of the Company for the financial year 31 March 2023 at INR 0.35 million plus
applicable taxes, and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by
them in connection with the aforesaid audit be and is hereby ratified and
confirmed.”

By the Order of the Board of Directors
Jamshed Naval Cooper

Date: 18 July 2022 Managing Director
Place: Gurugram



NOTES:

1.

10.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic and social distancing norms to be
followed, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its general
circular dated May 05, 2022 read with circulars dated 13 January 2021, May
5, 2020, April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through
VC / OAVM.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8! April 2020, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast
vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the Body
Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes at the
meeting.

The facility for joining the meeting in the VC/OAVM mode shall be kept open
at least 15 minutes before the scheduled time for the commencement of the
Meeting and 15 minutes after the completion of the meeting.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Registered Office of the Company will be
deemed to be venue for the purpose of this meeting.

The chairman may decide to conduct a vote by show of hands, as the number
of members are less than 50 unless a demand for poll is made by any member
in accordance with section 109 of the Act.

The Members/participants will be allowed to pose questions concurrently or
may submit questions in advance on the email address of the company.

The recorded transcript/Video recording of the VC/OAVM shall be
maintained in the safe custody by the Company.

A copy of the notice shall also be prominently displayed on the website of
the Company.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars Notice of the AGM along
with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode
to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory
Statement can be obtained for inspection by writing to the Company at the
Email-1D arjun.dutta@zcltd.com till the date of AGM. Similarly, statutory
registers that are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company in the normal course of business prior to and during the continuance
of AGM at the venue of meeting, may also be accessed through the above
mentioned mode.
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11. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map, attendance
slip, and proxy form are not annexed to this Notice.

12. Following are the instructions regarding access and participation in the
Annual General Meeting:

a. Members will be sent a link to their registered email IDs sufficiently in
advance to enable them to participate in the Annual General Meeting, which
requires an electronic device such as computer or laptop or mobile phone
with appropriate audio video facilities;

b. Members shall click on the link and can join the Annual General Meeting
to participate;

c. Members participating in the Annual General Meeting shall ensure that no
person other than the concerned Member is attending or has access to the
proceedings of the said meeting;

d. Every participant shall identify himself/herself before speaking at the
Annual General Meeting.

e. All the proceedings at the said meeting would be recorded and maintained
in the safe custody of the Company;

f. The person to whom Members may contact in this regard is Mr. Arjun Dutta,
Company Secretary of the Company at arjun.dutta@zcltd.com.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
are given below:

Iltem No. 3:

Ms. Soek Peng Sim was initially appointed on the Board as an Additional Director
on 26 July 2016 and her appointment was further regularised in the Annual
General Meeting held on 15 May 2017.

Brief resume of Ms. Soek Peng Sim (Holding DIN: 06958955), who is proposed
to be reappointed as Director, is given below:

Ms. Soek Peng Sim, aged 53 vyears, is presently Finance Director for
HeidelbergCement Asia Pacific. She holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
University of Malaya, Malaysia. She is also a CPA-registered with The Malaysian
Association of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA) as well as a Chartered
Accountant honoured by Malaysian Institute of Accounting (MIA). Prior to
joining HeidelbergCement Group, she worked with Reckitt Benckiser Group,
Philips Malaysia, HoHup Malaysia and The Lion Group, Malaysia. She has rich
and vast experience in financial planning & analysis, business development and
support, accounting & taxation, business process improvements and corporate
structure optimisation. Other than extensive experience in construction materials
industry, she also possesses diversified industry exposure in FMCG,
manufacturing and construction & property development.
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She is not related to any of the other directors of the Company. She attended all
the Board Meetings during the Financial year 2021-2022 respectively. Ms. Soek
Peng Sim also holds the position of Director in Gulbarga Cement Limited and
HeidelbergCement India Limited. (Subsidiaries of HC AG). Ms. Soek Peng Sim
is a member of Audit Committee at HeidelbergCement India Limited. The Board
of Directors has recommended the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice
for approval of the members at the ensuing AGM.

Except Ms. Soek Peng Sim, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) of the Company and/or their relatives is concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

Iltem No. 4:

Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper was initially appointed on the Board as an Additional
Director and was designated as the Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 01
August 2016. His appointment was further regularised in the Annual General
Meeting held on 15 May 2017 for a period from 01 August 2016 to 31 July 2019.

Thereafter, the members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on
29 July 2020 had approved reappointment of Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper as
Managing Director of Zuari Cement Limited from 1 August 2019 till 31 July 2022

Brief resume of Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper (holding DIN 01527371), who is
proposed to be reappointed as Director, is given below:

Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper (holding DIN 01527371), aged 65 years, is a science
graduate with post-Graduation in management specializing in marketing from the
Institute of Management Studies, Indore University. During his professional
career he has gained rich experience spanning over 37 years in the cement
industry. He has also worked for consumer durable industry in the past.

Mr. Cooper joined HeidelbergCement India Limited as Director - Sales &
Marketing in December 2006 soon after takeover of Mysore Cement Limited by
HeidelbergCement Group. He is credited for revamping the Sales and Marketing
setup of the Company and launching of “mycem” brand which is now positioned
as a premium category cement in Central India.

He is also the Managing Director of HeidelbergCement India Limited and
Chairman of Gulbarga Cement Limited (which are also part of HeidelbergCement
Group). Besides this he is also a member of Board of Governors of National
Council for Cement and Building Materials (which is under the Administrative
Control of Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Govt. of India) Prior to joining
HeidelbergCement India Ltd., Mr. Cooper served ACC Limited (now a Holcim
Group Co.) for 22 years where he also worked for its joint ventures Float Glass
and Bridgestone.

Prior to ACC, he worked for Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Co. Ltd. A consumer
durables company. Traversing his professional career, Mr. Cooper has gained
experience in Corporate Management, Cost Leadership, Strategy Building, Brand
Management, Logistics, Channel Management, Rural Marketing, Feasibility
Studies & Project Implementation, Human Resource Management, IT Systems,
Procurement and Company Integration. During his illustrious career, he



pioneered the 25 kg cement packing and launched bulk cement for the first time
in India. One of his achievements has been managing and minimising the risks
arising out of spurious look-alike brands.

In accordance with the terms mutually agreed upon between HeidelbergCement
AG of Germany and Mr. Cooper, the remuneration of Mr. Cooper shall continue
to be borne and directly paid by HeidelbergCement AG to Mr. Cooper as a
nominee of the ultimate shareholder. HeidelbergCement India Limited shall
continue to provide chauffeur driven car to Mr. Cooper and reimburse the
expenses incurred towards mobile phone, broadband connection, landline phone
at his residence and club/chambers' membership fee.

Mr. Cooper is not related to any of the other directors of the Company. He
attended all the Board Meetings during the Financial year 2021-2022
respectively. Further, he does not hold any Equity Shares in the Company. Mr.
Cooper is a Chairman of Risk Management Committee and a member in
Stakeholder Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee at HeidelbergCement India Limited (Fellow Subsidiary). The Board
of Directors has recommended the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice
for approval of the members at the ensuing AGM.

Except Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) of the Company and/or their relatives is concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

Iltem No. 5:

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 20 May 2022
appointed Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain as an Additional Director of the Company
pursuant to the provisions of section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Jain
holds office of Directors up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the Act from a
shareholder of the Company signifying his intention to appoint Mr. Vimal Kumar
Jain as a Director of the Company in the Annual General Meeting. Brief profile
of Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain (DIN: 09561918) is given below:

Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain, aged 54 years, has done B.E-Mechanical Engineering
from Madhav Institute of Technology & Sciences, Gwalior (M.P.) and has also
completed Post Graduate Diplomas in Business Management and Projects
Management from IGNOU. In his career spanning over 30 years, consisting of 19
years abroad and 11 years in India, he has acquired rich and vast experience of
over three decades in the Cement sector in Operations & Maintenance and Project
Management from concept to commissioning. He has a successful track record
for developing strategic initiatives, organizational improvements, capacity
expansions, de-bottlenecking, production and quality improvements, adoption of
new technologies, overall cost reductions, waste processing, and working with
diverse cultures and challenging environments.



He is working with HeidelbergCement Group since 2007. He has worked as
Project Manager with Heidelberg Technology Centre handling projects in
Indonesia and Thailand. He joined HeidelbergCement India Limited on 3 January
2022 as Technical Director. Prior to joining HeidelbergCement Group, he has
worked with RAK Cement of U.A.E., Prism Cements and Raymond Cement in
various capacities in projects and technical function. He is not related to any of
the other directors of the Company. Further, he does not hold any Equity Shares
in the Company. Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain is a Director and also a member of
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee at HeidelbergCement India Limited.
The Board of Directors has recommended the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of
the Notice for approval of the members at the ensuing AGM.

Except Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives is concerned or interested,
financial or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

Iltem No. 6:

The Board of Directors of the Company approved the re-appointment of M/s. R.J.
Goel & Co., Cost Accountants, to conduct the Audit of the Cost Accounting
Records of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2023. In terms of
the provisions of section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
14(a)(ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditor is to be approved by the members of the Company.
Accordingly, the members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors during the financial year 2022-23 as set out in the Resolution for
the aforesaid services to be rendered by them. The Board of Directors has
recommended the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval of
the members at the ensuing AGM.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their
relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed
resolution.

By the Order of the Board of Directors

Date: 18 July 2022 Jamshed Naval Cooper
Place: Gurugram Managing Director



ZUARI CEMENT LIMITED

Registered Office: Krishna Nagar, Yerraguntla, Kadapa District
Andhra Pradesh- 516 311

BOARD’S REPORT
To the Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the 22" Annual Report together with the
audited financial statements of Zuari Cement Limited (the Company) for the
financial year ended 31 March 2022 (FY22).

THE YEAR IN RETROSPECT

The last two years have been challenging for the global economy on account of
COVID-19 pandemic. Repeated waves of wide-spread infection, supply-chain
disruptions, stress on healthcare systems and, more recently, inflation have led to
tough time. The unexpected surge in Delta variant of COVID-19 put immense
pressure on healthcare systems across India. Faced with these challenges, the
Government of India's immediate response was a bouquet of safety-nets to cushion
the impact on vulnerable sections of society and the business sector. The
government also stepped-up capital expenditure on infrastructure to build back
medium-term demand as well as aggressively implemented supply-side measures
to prepare the economy for a sustained long-term growth. The financial system
often gets stressed during turbulent times. However, India's capital markets, like
many other global markets, have done exceptionally well and facilitated record
mobilization of risk capital.

Despite the disruptions caused by the pandemic, India's balance of payments
remained in surplus throughout the last two years. RBI maintained the repo rate at
4% and undertook various measures, including secondary market G-sec acquisition
programme, special Long-Term Repo operations, etc. to induce additional liquidity
in the system. During FY22, India's GDP grew by 8.7%*, as compared to
contraction of 6.6% in FY21. Index of Industrial Production (I11P) grew by 11.3%*
in FY22, driven by a favourable base as it was negative by 8.4% in FY21. Within
the IIP data the index of eight core industries, which includes cement industry,
increased by 10.4%* in FY22 as compared to contraction of 6.4% in FY21.

The war between Russia and Ukraine has resulted in major ramifications for the
global economy, that was on the recovery path post COVID-19 pandemic. Both the
Countries being major producers of various commodities, disruptions created by
war have resulted in soaring global commodity prices especially that of crude oil,
coal, natural gas, fertilizers and metals. Similarly, food inflation is also gathering
pace across the globe as Russia and Ukraine are major producers and exporters of
food grains. The US Fed and other central banks, including RBI, have swung into
action by nudging up their interest rates to control inflation which in turn may
destabilize growth.

*Source: Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation.



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS / REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Production and Sales figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 were as
under:

2022 2021

(12 Months) (15 Months)
Clinker Production (KMTSs) 3,347 3,794
Cement Production (KMTs) 3,884 4,701
Cement Sales (KMTs) 3,924 4,780
Clinker Sales (KMTSs) 457 360

A snapshot of the Company’s financial performance for FY22 vis-a-vis
performance for FY21 is as under:
INR in million

Financial year

Financial year

Particulars 3ler|1v<ii:§:l(:h ended
2022 31 March 2021
(12 Months) (15 Months)

Revenue from Operations (Gross) 20528 23,064
Other Income 143 362
Total Revenue 20671 23,426
Total Expenses 19843 21,236
st (e By CPreciater
Depreciation and Amortization 1199 1,533
Finance Costs 309 679
Profit before Tax 829 2,190
Tax expense 70 447
Net Profit 759 1,743

In the wake of challenges posed by second wave of COVID-19 during April to
June 2021, your Company as a responsible citizen stood fully committed to the
wellbeing of its employees and the society at large. Amidst varied restrictions
due to COVID-19, demand turned erratic and fierce competition in the market
built pressure on prices. We have restricted and withdrawn from few of the
markets owing to current pricing scenario.

On the operations front, the Company faced challenges in procurement of coal
due to shortage of coal in the Country coupled with mining disruptions in
Australia and South Africa. Consequently, the Company had to increase reliance
on petcoke and also constantly change its fuel mix to achieve cost optimisation.
Unabated increase in price of crude oil resulted in increase of freight cost and
packaging materials. Frequent stoppages of power plants, due to shortage of
coal as well as low power demand amid lockdowns, led to reduced flyash
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generation thus compelling us to source flyash from distant locations to be able
to ensure uninterrupted production of Portland Pozzolana Cement.

We focused on various cost control measures such as renegotiating existing
contracts without impacting price, bundling contracts for additional discounts,
extending annual service contracts etc., ensure uninterrupted supply of raw
materials, spares, and provisions of services. The Company also reviewed its
Risk Control Matrix to counter the emerging challenges arising from the
unprecedented situation. A continuous process of coordination with all
stakeholders is in place to continually assess the risks and take corrective
measures.

The 21 MW Waste Heat Recovery Project for power generation at Yerraguntla
Plant of the Company is in an advanced stage. During the current year, the works
in Turbine & WTP buildings, outdoor cable tray fixing and cable laying are
progressing which are critical for First Power Generation. It is informed that
TKI has requested for extension of projects time schedule and the Management
has agreed for the same and accordingly contractual completion period stands
revised to December 2022 as against previous schedule of November 2022.

DIVIDEND:

In order to conserve financial resources, the Board of Directors is not
recommending any dividend for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.

DEBT SERVICING:

Your Company has met all obligations towards repayment of principal and
interest on all loans availed from time to time.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Details of investments and loans covered under section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are given in notes to the financial statements at Note No. 5 and 6
respectively. No guarantee or security in connection with a loan to any other
body corporate or person is given by the company.

DIRECTORS:

Appointment of Director

e Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain (DIN: 09561918) was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company with effect from 10 June 2022. In the capacity of
Additional Director, Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain holds the office up to the date
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice
under section 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing
the appointment of Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain as Director in the ensuing AGM.
His brief profile is given in the Notice of AGM. The Board recommends
the appointment of Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain, by the members in the ensuing
AGM.
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Resignation of Director

e Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari (DIN: 03265246) resigned from the position of
Non-Executive Director of the Company as well as the Whole-time Director
of HeidelbergCement India Limited (fellow subsidiary). with effect from
09 June 2022 due to superannuation. The Board places on record its
appreciation for the valuable guidance and directions provided by Mr.
Tiwari during his tenure as Non-Executive Director of the Company.

Retirement by rotation

e Ms. Soek Peng Sim (DIN: 06958955) retires by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible has offered herself for
reappointment. Her brief profile is given in the Notice of AGM. The Board
recommends her reappointment by the members at the ensuing AGM.

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Board of Directors of the
Company met 4 times on 28 May 2021, 22 July 2021, 19 October 2021 and 08
February 2022. Mr. Kevin Gerard Gluskie, Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque, Ms.
Soek Peng Sim, Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper and Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari
attended all the four meetings of the Board. The maximum time gap between
two sequential meetings was less than 120 days. The Company does not pay
sitting fee to any of its Directors.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, a
performance evaluation Policy has been formulated containing the criteria and
methodology for facilitating performance evaluation of the Board as a whole
and directors individually. The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of
its own performance and also of its individual directors. Its own performance
was carried out on the basis of Board composition and quality, Board meeting
and procedure and on Board strategy and risk management. For the evaluation
of the performance of individual directors’ criteria for evaluation included
attendance, contribution at the meetings, decision making ability and their
preparedness for the meetings. The Directors have expressed their satisfaction
on the outcome of the performance evaluation.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts
or Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company and
its future operations.

AUDITORS:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
the members at the 21°' Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 13
September 2021 had appointed S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP., Chartered
Accountants, as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office up to the
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conclusion of the 26" Annual General Meeting for conducting statutory audits
commencing from FY2021-22 until FY2025-26.

Auditors’ comments / observations referred to in their report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further explanation from the Board. The
Auditors’ reported no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the
Officers and Employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the
financial year.

COST AUDIT:

The Company is maintaining cost accounting records in accordance with
provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder. The Cost Audit for the fifteen months period ended 31 March 2021
was conducted by M/s R. J. Goel & Co., Cost Accountants, Delhi and as required
Cost Audit Report was duly filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India. The Audit of the cost accounts of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2022 is also being conducted by the said firm
and the Report will be filed within the stipulated time.

In accordance with Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 the Board of Directors has appointed M/s.
R.J. Goel & Co., Cost Accountants as Cost Auditor of the Company for the
financial year ending 31°%" March 2023 on a remuneration of INR 0.35 million.
Pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a resolution seeking
member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. R. J. Goel & Co.,
Cost Accountants for the financial year ending 315 March 2023 is included in
the Notice convening the AGM. The Board recommends the aforesaid resolution
for approval of the members.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
the Board had appointed M/s. K. Narayana Swamy & Co., Company Secretaries,
Bangalore to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed herewith
as Annexure ‘A’. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

ANNUAL RETURN:

A copy of the annual return for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 filed
with Registrar of Companies is posted on website of the Company. The draft
Annual Return for FY22 is also posted on website of the Company. After filing
of Annual Return for FY22 with MCA, the draft will be replaced with the final
version. Weblink to access abovementioned Annual Returns is as under:
http://www.zuaricements.com/index.php/our-company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on 31 March 2022 comprised
three members namely, Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper (Chairman of the
Committee); Ms. Soek Peng Sim and Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Committee met twice on 28
May 2021 and 19 October 2021. Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper, Mr. Sushil Kumar
Tiwari and Ms. Soek Peng Sim attended both the meetings of the Committee.

The Board in its meeting held on 18 July 2022 had appointed Mr. Vimal Kumar
Jain as the member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. 10
June 2022 in place of Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari.

The scope and functions of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE:

Amended Sub-rule (2) of Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, exempts unlisted public companies which are
joint ventures, wholly owned subsidiaries, and dormant companies from the
requirement of appointing Independent Directors on their Board. Similarly,
amended rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Powers) Rules,
exempts unlisted Public Companies from the constitution of Audit Committee
and Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Your Company is an unlisted public company and is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Ciments Francais S.A, France. The Company is exempted from the
requirement of appointing Independent Directors and constitution of Audit
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. In pursuance of the
same the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
constituted under section 177 and section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
respectively were dissolved w.e.f. 25.10.2018.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not invited any Fixed Deposits from the shareholders / public
during the period under review.

LISTING OF SHARES:
Your Company is not a listed Company.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Foreign Exchange inflows and outgo during the year are at INR 3.98 million and
INR 4273.07 million respectively.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of

India have been complied with™ in terms of Sec.118 (10) of the Companies Act,
2013.
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ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

The particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and
Research & Development as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 forming
part of this report are annexed as ‘Annexure B’.

ENVIRONMENT:

Your Company aims to achieve progress in harmony with the environment. We
continuously seek environment friendly approaches in our operations viz.
conserving energy, exploring alternative source of energy, reducing air
pollution, conserving water, enhancing the carbon sink by increasing green
cover, promoting circular economy etc.

During FY22 following measures were implemented towards protection of
environment, controlling and reduction of pollution levels.

Yerraguntla Plant:

* MIYAWAKI plantation developed at colony around 32 varieties and 2700
Nos. of native saplings were planted.

* Permanent 102 Nos. Rain guns installed from Mines office to Crushers
and all Haul roads in-order to improve environment emission levels. All
are operating in auto mode.

* Permanent 45 water sprinklers and 6 rain guns installed from main gate
to CCR road, cement mill to Gypsum shed, Coal shed & fly ash transport
road. All are operating in auto mode.

* Post clinker area all transfer points nuisance bag filters suction and
discharge pipes modified to improve bag filters efficiency.

e DBC tunnel Bag filter replaced with cartridge bag filter to minimize the
fugitive emissions.

* New bag filter installed at cement bulk loading system.

* Hot Gas generator installed at Cement mill-4 to increase usage of wet fly
ash thus reducing carbon footprint.

* Geo-textile matting provided to prevent soil erosion at topsoil dump.

* Installation of solid waste management system in colony.

* Garland drain provided to protect the soil from surface run off.

* Nomis ground vibration monitoring equipment is using for every blast at

mines.
- APEX India Green Leaf Platinum Award 2020 for Environment Excellence.
- Mineral Conservation week (MEMC) First prize for Sustainable and
Scientific Development.
Sitapuram Plant

e Installation of Dedusting Bag filter at DPC cooler area, then clinker dust
is recycled into the reprocess and fugitive emissions are under control.
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e Distribution of dust Bins dry waste and wet waste at SPM Residential
Quarters, collection of waste material from colony households is
utilizing as an alternative fuel in kiln.

* Sewage treatment plant wastewater is using for Green belt developments.

Chennai Grinding Unit

* Achieved 2-degree Celsius lower ambient temperature within our plants
compared 1 Km away by green belt development inside the plant.

e 1421 saplings were planted at plant area as part of Green belt development
e Zero discharge was implemented.

Sholapur Grinding Unit

e 2200 saplings were planted at plant area as part of Green belt
Development

* Installed drip irrigation system in the plant for conservation of water.

* Filter bags - 302 Nos. of filter bags were changed during the year to
control dust at raw material unloading points and at various locations to
control fugitive dust emissions during manufacturing activities.

Sitapuram Power Plant

* Improved Green Belt area inside the plant premises by plantation of 880
fruit and other tree saplings.

* Installation of Telescopic spouts at ash silo-1 & 2 areas for controlling
fugitive dust when loading ash tankers/bulkers.

Cochin Cement Terminal

e Air Quality Monitoring was performed as per KSPCB and CPCB norms.
* At relevant locations the Bag Filters were installed.

Brief update on Yerraguntla Plant closure Order

The Andhra Pradesh Pollution Control Board (APPCB) had issued a closure
order on 23 April 2021 directing the Yerraguntla plant to close its operations
and simultaneously it also directed the State Electricity Board to disconnect the
Plant’s power supply. The Company had filed a writ petition against the said
closure order before the High Court of Andhra Pradesh. The hon’ble Court had
passed an interim order to temporarily suspend the Closure Order. The matter is
sub-judice as the court has directed APPCB to reinspect the plant operation and
thereafter submit its inspection report to the Hon’ble Court. The Plant operation
continued during the year in view of injunction granted by the Hon’ble Court.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Safety of employees and all stakeholders is of paramount importance to us and
has now become a part of our business DNA. “Someone is waiting for you at
Home” is the message that is spoken most during all meetings. Driven by this
philosophy, we endeavour to provide a safe and healthy working environment.
HeidelbergCement Group’s cardinal norms, guidelines, standards and legal
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requirements along with stipulations under 1ISO 45001-Occupational Health and
Safety Management System are being strictly adhered to at all the plants.

The management activated its “Contingency Management and Business
Continuity Plan” in March 2020 to counter the onslaught of COVID-19
pandemic. The first priority envisaged by the business continuity team was to
create awareness amongst the employees about corona virus and the means to
safeguard against it. Therefore, various communications were issued and online
awareness sessions were conducted to make employees aware about the
impending risk.

To protect against COVID-19, thermal scanning of individuals has been made
mandatory at entry gates of all plants. In addition to the usual Personal
Protective Equipment (PPE), COVID-19 protection has also been made
mandatory while working in the plant premises. Sanitizer dispensing machines
and handwashing facilities have been provided at relevant places and social
distancing norms are being strictly followed.

Safety conversations and safety zones are being effectively used for employee
engagement and nurturing safety culture in all aspects of operations. Safety
zones have been created at all plants with cross functional teams including
contractual employees. A schedule of twenty four most critical safety hazards
relevant to the cement industry has been compiled. These safety themes are
announced every month and key aspects relating to the theme are dwelt upon
throughout the month to firmly instil the safety culture in the organization.
National Safety week was observed from 4" to 11" March 2022 across all the
plants. Monitoring of the workplace for noise, particulate matter, free silica and
illumination level is being done as per the regulatory norms. All the plants are
ISO 45001 certified.

Cochin Cement Terminal achieved 7 years without LTI during the year 2021.

We are happy to inform that the Company has achieved safe business year with
no fatality and lost time injuries.

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

e Yerraguntla plant received APEX India Green Leaf Gold Award 2021 for
Safety Excellence.

e Solapur Grinding Unit has received a Certificate of Appreciation from
Shri A.M. Avasare, Joint Director, Industrial Safety & Health.

e Satara Division DISH, for Best safety practices presentation with the
concept of “Share, Learn and Apply”.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company is committed to the three pillars of ecology, economy and social
responsibility. We are working for the benefit of the communities around our
plants with the spirit of "partners in progress”. We encourage community
participation at all levels from planning and implementation to monitoring and
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maintenance of assets created under CSR projects. While discharging our
responsibilities as a good corporate citizen, we are looking at all aspects of
development. Our CSR initiatives have wide coverage ranging from education,
skill development, health & hygiene, infrastructure development and sports.
During FY22 the Company has spent INR 30.13 million on various CSR projects
/programmes exceeding the obligations pursuant to Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has undertaken projects in the areas of promotion of education,
health, skill development and rural development as part of its commitment to
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). These projects are in accordance with
the scope outlined under schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR
policy of the Company is posted on the Company’s website. The web-link to
access the said policy is as follows:
http://www.zuaricements.com/images/ZCL_CSR_Policy.pdf

General Health check-ups were organized at Plants of the Company, offering
free consultations and medications to people from the villages. The plant’s
health centres free consultation, medicine, treatments and ambulance service are
being provided for patients from nearby villages. Company extended its full
support to the society during COVID-19 Pandemic at all locations of the plants.

The Company provided financial subsidy to Schools managed by DAV and
supported other School infrastructures namely rehabilitation of schools,
Scholarships to students and distribution of educational kits, construction of
classrooms, school boundary walls, desks and benches etc. Development of
infrastructure for Anganwadi centres at nearby villages, supporting computer
education and soft skills development at village school.

General Health Check-up, Free medicine & Ambulance support for wellbeing of
the nearby Villages.Training was imparted in making home cleaning products,
beauty care and tailoring skills to improve the wellbeing of rural women in plant
locations.

At all locations of the plants, support was extended towards infrastructure
development works for construction of roads, community hall, overhead water
tanks, installation of solar streetlights, enhancing drinking water facility etc.,
and supported special target group.

The Report on CSR activities in the format prescribed by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure C’.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Details of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are given below:
= Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper, Managing Director;

= Mr. Vimal Kumar Chaudhary, Chief Financial Officer; and
= Mr. Shrinivas Harapanahalli, Company Secretary (upto 04 April 2022)


http://www.zuaricements.com/images/ZCL_CSR_Policy.pdf
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VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blowing Policy to deal with
instances of fraud, non-ethical behaviour, irregularities and mismanagement, if
any, and to ensure effective, timely and transparent process of such violations.
During FY22 no compliant was received under the Vigil Mechanism. The Vigil
Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the Company’s website. The
web-link to access the said policy is as follows:
https://www.zuaricements.com/images/policy/ZCL_Vigil _Mechanism.pdf

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Company has a sound Risk Management System and a structured Risk
Management Policy in place. The business risks have been classified under the
broad heads - strategic, operational, financial and legal and compliance risks.
The Company’s Risk Management Policy lays down a bottom-up process
comprising risk identification, analysis and evaluation, treatment and
controlling. Risk owners identify and analyse all risks in their area of
operations. The business risks are reviewed by the Senior Management and
critical risks are placed before the Risk Management Committee/Board of
Directors for review. The Risk Management Policy is posted on the Company’s
website. The web-link to access the said policy is as follows:
http://www.zuaricements.com/images/Company/2.ZCLRiskManagementPolicy.pdf

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPT):

All the transactions entered into between the Company and its related parties
for the year ended 31 March 2022 were in the ordinary course of business and
on an arms’ length basis. During the year under review, the Company has not
entered into any related party transaction exceeding the threshold limit provided
under the Companies Act, 2013 / Rules made thereunder.

Details of transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are
given in the notes to the accounts under Item No. 31 titled Related Party
disclosure and Related Party Transactions.

The Company has in place a Policy on Related Party Transactions and a
Framework for the purpose of assessing the basis of determining the arm’s
length price of relevant transactions. The said policy and the framework are
subject to the review by the Board of Directors from time to time. The Related
Party Transactions Policy is posted on the Company’s website. The web-link to
access the said policy is as follows:
https://www.zuaricements.com/images/Company/1.ZCL RelatedPartyTransactionsPolicy.pdf

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE
WORKPLACE:

The Company continues to remain compliant with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013, which aims to protect women at workplace against any form of sexual
harassment and prompt redressal of any complaint. During the year ended 31


https://www.zuaricements.com/images/policy/ZCL_Vigil_Mechanism.pdf
http://www.zuaricements.com/images/Company/2.ZCLRiskManagementPolicy.pdf
https://www.zuaricements.com/images/Company/1.ZCLRelatedPartyTransactionsPolicy.pdf
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March 2022, no complaint was received by the Company in this regard. The

web-link to access the said policy is as follows:
http://www.zuaricements.com/images/Prohibition-Against-Sexual-Harassment.pdf

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has in place various internal controls, policies and procedures to
ensure orderly and efficient conduct of its business. Standard Operating
Procedures (SOPs) and Risk Control Matrix (RCM) have been designed for
critical processes across all operations. The internal financial controls are tested
for operating effectiveness through management’s ongoing monitoring and
review processes, and independently by the internal auditors. In our view the
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There are no material changes and commitments that affect the financial position
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of signing
of the Boards’ Report. Further, there is no change in the nature of business of
the Company.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them and based on the assessment of the management,
the Board of Directors makes the following statements in terms of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013:

i) that in the preparation of the accounts for the year ended 31 March
2022 the applicable accounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ii) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied
consistently and judgements and estimates have been made that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and of the profit or loss of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2022;

iii) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) that the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2022
have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis;

v) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that such
internal financial controls were adequate and were operating
effectively; and


http://www.zuaricements.com/images/Prohibition-Against-Sexual-Harassment.pdf
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vi) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws are in place and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company has a subsidiary company namely, Gulbarga Cement Limited
(GCL). A brief overview of subsidiary Company is given below:

GCL is in the process of setting up a Greenfield cement plant of 3 Mtpa. All the
permissions and approvals have been obtained including environmental
clearances, consent for establishment and consent for operations for
commencing the project activities. The critical litigations against procurement
of land have been settled in favour of the company. Bids for EPC tender,
engineering, construction and procurement activities will be initiated in due
course.

Land admeasuring 33.425 acres has been registered in the name of the Company,
out of required land of 150 acres for Railway Lead Line. The consultant K&R
Rail Engineering India Ltd. (KRREL) have further secured ~90 acres of land by
entering into Sale Agreements with farmers.

The Company has received an Order on 06 January 2022 from Karnataka
Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB) which has granted extension of 3
years i.e., up to 06 January 2025 to complete the project.

The Company has once again applied for an authenticated DGPS mining lease
sketch on 05 June 2022 to Indian Bureau of Mines (IBM) and the same is under
scrutiny. The consent to operate Mines is coterminous with the validity of
mining plan and the same shall be extended upon submission of an approved
mining plan to State Pollution Control Board. The application given to the Grid
Authorities to source the power from the new 400/220 kV substation is under
process for approval of 35 MVA. The approval for 35 MVA is expected to be
received by September 2022

A separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statements
of the Company’s subsidiaries are attached under Form AOC-1 to the financial
statements.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Industrial relations remained cordial and peaceful throughout the year.
Particulars of the employees as required, to be furnished under Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in
the ‘Annexure D’ of this Report.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 18 July 2022 Jamshed Naval Cooper Vimal Kumar Jain
Place: Gurugram Managing Director Director



22

ANNEXURE - A
FORM NO. MR 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
Zuari Cement Limited.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by ZUARI CEMENT LIMITED
(hereinafter called ‘the Company’ CIN:U26942AP2000PLC050415). The Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that, in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2022
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March
2022 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the Rules made thereunder
(Not Applicable);

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Rules made thereunder;
IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings; and

V. The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), viz.,

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not Applicable);



23

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (Not Applicable);

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits &
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable);

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable);

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding Companies Act and dealing with clients
(Not Applicable);

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable);

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 (Not Applicable); and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Not Applicable).

We have also examined the following Industry Specific Laws / General Laws as
applicable to the Company based on the information received and records maintained
by the Company on test-check basis:

VI. Industry-specific Laws -

Cement Control Order, 1967

Legal Metrology Act, 2009

Mines Act, 1952

Boilers Act, 1993

Explosives Act, 1884

Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS) Act, 2016 &

Other allied applicable Industry-specific Laws, Rules & Regulations thereof.

Nouahrwb=

VII. General Laws -
1. Factory/Environmental Laws:

a. Factories Act, 1948

b. Environmental Protection Act, 1986.

c. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.

d. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981.

e. Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary
Movement) Rules, 2015

f. Electricity Act, 2003 &

g. Other allied applicable Factory Laws, Rules & Regulations thereof.

2. Labour Laws:

a. Employees State Insurance Act, 1948
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b. Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

c. Payment of Wages Act, 1936

d. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

e. Employees Compensation Act, 1923

f. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

g. Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

h. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 &

i. Other allied applicable Labour Laws, Rules & Regulations thereof.

The Management has also represented and confirmed that all the laws, rules,
regulations, orders, standards and guidelines as are specifically applicable to the
Company relating to Industry / Factory / Labour, etc., have been complied with.

Apart from the above, we have also examined the compliance of applicable Secretarial
Standards/ Guidelines issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) with
specific reference to meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings
(SS-2).

Accordingly, we state that during the year under review there were adequate systems
and processes in place to monitor and ensure compliance with various applicable and
general laws and that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Orders, Standards, Guidelines, etc., mentioned above.

We have not examined compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws,
like direct and indirect tax laws, maintenance of financial records, etc., since the
same are subject to review by statutory auditors, tax auditors and other designated
professionals.

We report that:
The Board of the Company is duly constituted which includes a Woman Director.

Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and the
Agenda and detailed notes on Agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

As per the minutes of the Board Meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman,
the decisions at the Meetings were unanimous inasmuch as minutes of the Meetings
are self-explanatory.

We also report that based on the information provided and representation made by
the Company and upon review of compliance mechanism established by the Company
which include compliance certificates issued by the Company Secretary and other
Executives of the Company and taken on record by the Board / Committee, we are of
the opinion that there were adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with all applicable Laws.

We further report that:
There were no other specific events / actions in pursuance of the above referred laws,

rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on the affairs of the
Company.
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For K. Narayana Swamy & Co.,
Company Secretaries

(K. Narayana Swamy)
FCS 1838 / CP 9878
Peer Review Cert. No.1744 /2022
UDIN NO F001838D000637484
Place : Bengaluru
Date : 18tk July, 2022

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
‘Annexure - A’ and forms an integral part of this Report.
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‘Annexure - A’

To,

The Members,
Zuari Cement Limited.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records.
The verification was done on test-check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in the secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company like, Income Tax, GST, Customs, etc., as the same
were dealt with under separate audit/s.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representations about the
compliance of applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules,
Regulations, Standards and Guidelines is the responsibility of the Management in
terms of Section 134 (5) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test-check basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For K. Narayana Swamy & Co.,
Company Secretaries

(K. Narayana Swamy)

FCS 1838 / CP 9878
Peer Review Cert. No.1744 /2022
UDIN NO F001838D000637484

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 18th July, 2022
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Annexure — B to the Board’s Report

Particulars of Energy Conservation Technology Absorption and Research &
Development as required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A. Conservation of Energy

(i)

(if)
(iii)

Energy Conservation measures taken for the period ended 31 March
2022:

e BEE issued +7665 ESCerts to ZCL YGL plant in PAT Cycle-2.

* Replacement of Mill feed twin screw conveyor 15 KW with RAL 3.7
KW at VCLM-1. Resulted a saving of 7 KW per hour and improved
reliability.

e New efficient compressor installed in place of old inefficient
compressor for fly ash unloading.

* Improved AFR Thermal substitute ratio.
e Utilized 89.8% wind energy instead of conventional energy.
* Replaced 70W HPSV lamps by 45W LEDs.

* Replaced 250/400W flood light by LEDs in High Mast for area
lighting.

* Process optimization by sorting of grinding media.
e Electrification of railway track inside the siding.

Additional investment proposals implemented during the year for
reduction of consumption of Energy: Nil

Impact of the measures at (i) & (ii) above for reduction of energy
consumption:

e By improving TSR%, natural resources saved 1.5MT/day coal, which
is equal to 2.94 MINR/annum.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION:

(i)

Efforts made towards technology absorption, adoption and
innovation:

« Installation of Nitrogen Inert Gas system.
« Installation of waste oil firing system.
- Upgradation of water spray system.

* Installed dedicated screw compressor for mill girth gear lubrication
system.

* Installed gypsum belt conveyor to transport gypsum from storage shed
to feeding hopper.

* Installed de-dusting system for cement silo extraction equipment.

* Installed weighing system at wagon tippler.
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(ii) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution: Nil

(iit) Information regarding technology imported during last 3 years: Nil.

C. Research and Development (R&D)

(i) Specific areas in which R&D activities carried out by the company:
Nil.

(ii) Benefit derived of the above R&D: Nil.
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Annexure - C to the Board’s Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2022

A brief outline of the Company’s
CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to
be undertaken and a reference to
the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or programs.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended
from time to time, the Board of Directors of the Company
on recommendation of the CSR Committee approved a
CSR Policy.

Brief outline of the said Policy is given below:

e The overall objective of the CSR Policy of the
Company is to promote sustainable development of the
local communities with set targets and timeframes.
The Policy focuses on mitigating the adversities faced
by the communities and guiding them towards helping
themselves.

e The Company takes up CSR activities in key sectors
including but not limited to, healthcare, education,
rural development and skill development, giving
maximum freedom to the local communities and
employees to evolve meaningful initiatives.

e The Company believes that supporting the
development efforts of local community, addresses the
felt needs of the community and in return leads to
greater ownership and involvement in maintaining the
assets created.

e CSR initiatives are implemented through the
Company’s own employees. However, if required, the
Company may also deploy appropriate agencies based
on their proven credentials in the area of rural
development to supplement its efforts.

e The CSR projects are implemented through
Committees comprising local Company Officials at all
Plants. The Committees are chaired by the Plant Heads
and have key officials representing Human Resources,
Welfare and Administration Functions at the local
level as members.

e Proposals sent by the Implementation Committees are
vetted by a Committee at the Corporate Office together
with the financial allocation and thereafter the same
are placed before the CSR Committee and the Board of
Directors for consideration and approval.

The Policy is placed on the Company’s website and the
web link to access the same is:

http://www.zuaricements.com/images/ZCL_CSR_Policy.pdf
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The Composition of the CSR Committee as on 31 March 2022:

SN Name of Director Designation/Nature of Number of Number of
Directorship Meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee held Committee
during FY22 attended during
FY22
Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper | Chairman
Ms. Soek Peng Sim Member
Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari Member

Provide the web-link where
Composition of CSR Committee,
CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are
disclosed on the website of the
Company.

The web-link to access composition of CSR Committee,
CSR Policy and CSR projects are approved by the Board
are as under:

Composition of CSR Committee:
http://www.zuaricements.com/index.php/our-company
CSR Policy:
http://www.zuaricements.com/images/ZCL_CSR_Policy.pdf
CSR Projects:
http://www.zuaricements.com/index.php/our-company

Provide the details of Impact
assessment of CSR projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility  Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable.

Not Applicable

Details of the amount available
for set off in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility  Policy) Rules,
2014 and amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any.

Not Applicable

Average net profit of the
Company as per section 135(5)
i.e, for last three financial years
(FY2018, FY2019 and FY2020).

INR 14029.77 Lakhs

(a) Two percent of average net
profit of the Company as per
section 135(5).

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR
projects or programmes or
activities of the previous
financial years.

(c) Amount required to be set off
for the financial year, if any.

(d) Total CSR obligation for the
financial year (7a+7b-7c).

INR 280.60 Lakhs

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

INR 280.60 Lakhs
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8. | (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Amount Unspent (Rs. In Lakhs)
Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund
Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as specified under Schedule VII as per
Financial Year per section 135(6) second proviso to section 135(5)
(In INR Lakh)
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
Transfer Fund Transfer
N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects during FY22: NIL
SN | Nam Item Local Location of | Project | Amount | Amou | Amount | Mode of Mode of
e of from Area the Project | duration | allocate nt transferr | Implemen | Implemen-tation
the the list | (Yes/N d for spent ed to -tation through
Proje of 0) the inthe | Unspent Direct Implemen-ting
ct activiti Project | current CSR (Yes/No) Agency
esin (In financi | Account
Schedu Lakhs) al for the
le VII Year project
to the (In as per
Act Lakhs) | Section CSR
Stat | Distri 135(6) Regis-
e ct (In Name | tration
Lakhs) Number
@ @ @) 4) ®) | (©) 0] ®) ©9) (10) (11) (12)
N.A
Total
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
S. Name of the Project Item from | Local Location of project Amount Mode of Mode of
No. the list of | area spent for [implemen-| implementation —
activities | (Yes/ the project| tation Through
in No) (in INR Direct implementing
Schedule Lakh) (Yes/No) agency
VIl to the
Act CSR
State District Name Retgil)sntra
Number
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
01. | Subsidy to schools 1 Yes |Andhra Pradesh | Yerraguntla
managed by DAV. .
‘ Y Telangana Sitapuram 30.28 Direct - -
02. | Scholarship to students 1 Yes Andhra Pradesh| Yerraguntla
and Distribution of .
educational kits Telangana | Sitapuram 2.01 | Direct ; )
03. | Providing support to 1 Yes |Andhra Pradesh | Yerraguntla
other school’s
infrastructure such as
rehabilitation of Telangana Sitapuram _
schools, construction 0.65 | Direct . -
Svfallsroomsaesl?sound:r:)(; Maharashtra Solapur
Benches etc.
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04. Development of I Yes Telangana Sitapuram
Infrastructure for
Anganwadi centres at
hearby villages, Maharashtra Solapur
supporting computer 3.28 Direct
education & Soft skill - -
development at Village Tamil Nadu Chennai
school
05. General Health Check- I Yes |Andhra Pradesh| Yerraguntla
up, Free medicine &
Ambulance support for I - 19.88 Direct
wellbeing of the Telangana Sitapuram
nearby Villages.
06. | Support extended to For All Locations 59.73 | Direct
society against COVID-
19.
07. Imparting training on VI Yes Andhra Pradesh| Yerraguntla
making of home
cleaning products, Telangana Sitapuram
B r n
e.aut'y ca ? and 13.64 Direct
tailoring skills  to
improve the wellbeing Maharashtra Solapur
of rural women.
08. | Providing Support for I Yes For All Locations 171.84 Direct

various public works
like: Infrastructure
development works for
Construction of roads,
Community Hall,
overhead water tanks,
Installation of solar
streetlights etc.
Support to special
target group, support
for enhancing drinking
water facility.

Total

301.31
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Nil
Not Applicable
INR 301.31 Lakhs

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. Particulars Amount
No, (In Lakhs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 280.60
(ii) | Total Amount spent for the Financial Year 301.31
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 20.71
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Programmes or Activities of Not

the previous financial years, if any Applicable
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 20.71*

*In addition to the excess spending of INR 20.71 Lakhs, The Company has also carried forward
amount of excess spending of INR 128.51 Lakhs in respect of FY 21. Thus, the aggregate amount
available for set off during FY23 is INR 149.22 Lakhs.

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

Amount Amount Amount
Transferred | spentin the remaining to be
to Unspent | reporting Amount transferred to any fund specified under spent in
S| Preceding CSR Financial Schedule VII as per section 135(6), in any succeeding
" | Financial Account Year financial years
No.
Year under
section
135(6) Name of the Fund | Amount | Date of transfer
(In Lakhs) | (In Lakhs) (In Lakhs)
N.A
| Total | ‘ I

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects preceding financial
year(s): Nil

Sl. Project Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative | Status of the
No. ID the Project Year in duration amount spent on amount spent project -
which the allocated for | the project | attheendof | Completed/
project was the project in the reporting Ongoing
commenced reporting Financial
financial Year
Year
(In Lakhs) (In Lakhs) (In Lakhs)
1) () @) (4) () (6) () (8) (9)
N.A
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10 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details Nil
relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the
financial year.
(Asset-wise details):
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose
name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including
complete address and location of the capital asset).
11 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of Not Applicable
the average net profit as per section 135(5).
Place: Gurugram Jamshed Naval Cooper

Date: 18 July 2022 Managing Director & Chairman - CSR Committee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Zuari Cement Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone financial statements of Zuari Cement Limited (“the Company™), which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Sectlon 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and
profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s board report but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financia! statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Other Matter

The comparative standalone financial statements of the Company for the 15 months ended 31 March 2021 included
in these standalone financial statements, were audited by predecessor auditor who expressed an unmadifled opinion
on those standalone financial statements on 22 July 2021.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
acoordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to golng concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our oplnion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain pmfeséional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. '

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
refated disclosures made by management.

«» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditlons that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
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are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemmance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c)The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow deal with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022, taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B,

(g) There are no transactions on which prdvisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are applicable to
the company for the year ended 31 March 2022.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

I The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the standalone financial statements;
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any

material foreseeable {osses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund by the Company;

iv.(a)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, Including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iv.(bJThe Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are

material either Individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
atherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iv.(c)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement;

v. The dividend paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act. Further,

there is no dividend declared during the year.

For S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045

Rajeav Kumar Saxena

Partner

Membership No.; 077974
UDIN No.: 22077974ANEOLX3472

Place: Gurugram
Date: 18 July 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Zuari Cement Limited on the standalone financial
statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(a) {(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b)The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets under which fixed
assels are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 1n accordance with this program,
certain fixed assets were verified during the year and according to the information and explanation
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to
us, we report that, the title deeds of ail the immovable properties (which are included under the head
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’) (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed In favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company except for
the immovable properties acquired on acquisition in earlier years as mentioned in Note 3 of the
standalone financial statements for which registration of title deeds is in progress.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
and intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not
applicable.

(e) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) (as amended in
2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i){e) of the Order are not
applicable.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year, except for goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties. For stocks lying with third parties
at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained by the management and in respect of goods-
in-transit, subsequent goods receipt have been verified. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no material discrepancies of
10% or more In the aggregate for each class of inventory between physical inventory and book records
were noticed on physical verification.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company
has not been sanctioned any working capital or working capital limits in excess of X 5 crores, in aggregate,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order are not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations glven to us, the Company has granted loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties, the details of which are as
follows. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties.
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| Particulars | Loans (Rs. in lakhs) _ |
| Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year '
- Subsidiary 400.00
- Joint Ventures -
- Associates -
|- Others -
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases
- Subslidiary 11,530.53
- Joint Ventures -
- Associates -
| - Others -

(b) In our opinion, the investments made, and the terms and conditions of grant of all loans are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted, the schedule of repayment of pri ncipal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and the principal amount including interest is not due for repayment currently.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loan granted to such companies, firms, LLPs or any
other parties.

{e) The loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed, the detalls of which are as
follows:

Name of the party r Aggregate amount of overdues | Percentage of the aggregate to the
of existing loans renewed | total loans or advances in the
| {Amount in INR lakhs) nature of loans granted during the
_ | year
rGtharga-Cement Limited 12,610.47 ) 97% ‘

() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which are either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any transaction covered under Sections 185, However, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Sections 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year, had no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year and
there are no amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employee state insurance,
income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate
authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-
end for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.
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{b)According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding in respect of income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and other statutory dues
on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Wame of | Nature of | Amount | Period to which the amount \'Forum where dispute is
statue dues {INR In | relates pending
' lakhs)*
' Andhra Cenvat credit 26.07 | April 2011- March 2015 | Tribunal
Pradesh Sales tax 124.44 | 2012-13 | Tribunal
General sales
tax Act, 1957
Andhra | Entry tax 8.93 | 2015-17 Appellate authorities |
Pradesh Entry tax 63.70 | 2012-2017 Tribunal
:’:}:”: ctagggg Entry tax 178.33 | 2009-2011 Hon'ble High court,
‘ Andhra Pradesh
Sales tax 2.37 | 2016-2017 ) Appellate authorities
' Sales tax 7.92 | 2014-15 | Tribunal N
Central Cenvat credit | 678.29 | 2007-08, 2015-2017 Appellate authorities
Excise  Act, | Cenvat credit 3,468.44 | January 2005 to June 2018 | Tribunal
1944 Excise duty 12.42 | September 2016 to June 2017 | Appellate authorities
Exclse duty 569.23 | 2005-08 and January 2012 to | Tribunal
March 2015
“Central Sales | Centrat sales 3,061.79 | 2002-2005 | Tribunal
tax Act, 1956 | tax
Centrals sales 1,275.07 | 1997-1999 Hon’ble High court,
tax Andhra Pradesh
Odisha Entry | Entry tax 28.98 | 2005-06, 2011-2013 | Tribunal i
tax, 1999
Odisha Sales | Sales tax 1.43 | 1991-92 and 2004-05 Tribunal
tax act, 1947 | sajes tax 16.73 | 1992-93 Hon'ble high court,
Odisha
 Tamilnadu Sales tax 1.55 | July 2012 to June 2013 Appellate authorities
General sales | sales tax 26.44 | 2011-12 Tribunal ]
tax act, 1959
The Customs | Customs duty |  1,631.30 | January 2012 to December | Hon'ble Supreme court |
act, 1962 2012
Customs duty 616.04 | February 2012 to February 2013 | Tribunal
The Finance | Service tax 981.59 | 2011 to 2016 Tribunal
tax, 1994 B
The income | Income tax 2,084.11 | 2005-10 Appellate authorities
‘tax act, 1961 | Income tax 8,171.09 | 2008-09, 2010 to 2014, 2015- | Tribunal
2017

*net off of amount paid under protest

(viii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no such

transactions which were not recorded in the books of account earlier and have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii} of the Order are not applicable.

(ix)

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by bank or government. Further, there Is no
loan or borrowings from financial institution or any government authority.
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() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans were
applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basls have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary. Further, the company does not have
any associates or joint ventures.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary. Further, the company does not have any associates or joint ventures.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (Including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully; partially or optionally). Accordingly, provisions of clause3 (x} (b) of the order are
not applicable.

(xi} (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by

the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date
of this report. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

(xiii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. Since, the
Company is an unlisted public company and is a wholly-owned subsidiary, therefore, the provisions of Section
177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) (a)In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an Internal audit system commensurate with

(xv)

(xvi)

the size and nature of its business,
(b) We have considered the intemal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192
of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause3 (xv) of the order are not applicable.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, provisions of clause3 (xvi) (a) of the order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial or housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of dause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

() The Company is not a Core Investment Company (*CIC") as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi)c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management, the Group does not have any.
CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the
management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xvil) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financlal year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
Accordingly, provisions of clause3 (xvii) of the order are not applicable.

(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3
{xvili) of the order are not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and,
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company
is not capable of meeting Its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)and there are
no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies
Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, veporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0000SON/N500045

Rajeev Kumar Saxena

Parther

Membership No.: 077974

UDIN No.: 22077974ANEOLX3472

Place; Gurugram
Date: 18 July 2022



44

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the standalone finandal
statements of Zuari Cement Limited

Independent Auditor's report on the Intermal Finandial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) :

We have audited the internal financial controls of Zuari Cement Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based

5.

on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
finandal information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an

‘audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal finandial controls with reference to standalone finandial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
staternents for extemnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
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procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting prindples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financlal
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and nat be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the intemnal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control with
reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For §.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Frm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045

Rajeev Kumar Saxena

Partner

Membership No.: 077974

UDIN No.: 22077974ANEOIX3472

Place: Gurugram
Date: 18 July 2022



Zuari Cement Limited
Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Particulars

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right-of-use-asset
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Financial assets

Investments

Loans

Other financial assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
3 160,150.51 166,218.14
3 24,767.99 9,069.61

45 5,993.50 5,648.83
4 2,300.00 2,300.00
4 19.91 28.39
5 10,541.93 10,541.93
5 23.62 21.70
6 11,530.53 11,042.66
7 7,953.39 7,587.23
8 11,506.96 11,685.18

234,788.34 224,143.67
9 33,094.73 15,189.32

10 9,450.99 7,806.86
11 386.33 27,294.88
11 217.38 208.43
7 513.67 527.69
8 11,828.34 4,662.53

55,491.44 55,689.71
290,279.78 279,833.38

12 27,496.14 27,496.14

13 130,595.96 128,479.91
158,092.10 155,976.05

14 5,095.24 21,304.09
45 2,033.90 1,165.14

14A 146.16 162.10
15 8,353.10 8,094.26
16 16,756.87 17,488.27
17 553.21 586.24

32,938.48 48,800.10

14 22,260.89 26,613.37
45 616.32 987.35
18

384.72 137.52
50,973.32 25,916.89

19 15,916.75 14,392.76
15 536.09 474.18
20 8,561.11 6,535.16

99,249.20 75,057.23
132,187.68 123,857.33
290,279.78 279,833.38
2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Rajeev K Saxena
Partner
Membership No. 077974

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Cement Limited
CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Jamshed Naval Cooper Vimal Kumar Jain
Managing Director Director

DIN: 01527371 DIN: 09561918

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer



Zuari Cement Limited
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)
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Particulars

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (I)

Expenses
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed

Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses
Total Expense (II)

Profit before tax (I) - (I)
Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax charge/(credit)

Total tax expense
Profit after tax for the year/period (III)

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement losses of net defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

Other comprehensive losses for the year/period, net of tax (IV)

Total comprehensive income for the year/period, net of tax (III) + (IV)
Earnings per share [nominal value of share INR 10 (March 31, 2021: INR 10)]
Basic

Diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes

21
22

23
24
25
26
27
28

16
16

29

For the year ended

For the 15 months

March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
205,280.95 230,683.18
1,433.73 3,579.62
206,714.68 234,262.80
33,060.65 36,075.30
(5,124.56) 1,850.82
8,580.10 10,385.84
3,085.18 6,789.68
11,994.47 15,117.33
146,832.15 142,147.30
198,427.99 212,366.27
8,286.69 21,896.53
1,444.49 5,150.06
(745.97) (682.56)
698.52 4,467.50
7,588.17 17,429.03
41.68 (52.18)
(14.57) 18.23
27.11 (33.95)
7,615.28 17,395.08
2.76 6.34
2.76 6.34

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Rajeev K Saxena
Partner
Membership No. 077974

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Cement Limited
CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Jamshed Naval Cooper
Managing Director
DIN: 01527371

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer

Vimal Kumar Jain
Director
DIN: 09561918



Zuari Cement Limited
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Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

a. Equity Share Capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number Amount
At January 1, 2020 274,961,400 27,496.14
Increase/(decrease) during the period - -
At March 31, 2021 274,961,400 27,496.14
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At March 31, 2022 274,961,400 27,496.14
b. Other equity:
For the year ended March 31, 2022

Attributable to the equity holders
Particulars Securities premium Retained earnings  Items of OCI Total

account

At April 1, 2021 37,201.93 91,362.03 (84.05) 128,479.91
Profit for the year - 7,588.17 - 7,588.17
Dividend on equity and tax thereon (Note 13) - (5,499.23) - (5,499.23)
Other comprehensive loss (Note 13) - - 27.11 27.11
At March 31, 2022 37,201.93 93,450.97 (56.94) 130,595.96
For the period ended March 31, 2021

Attributable to the equity holders
Particulars Securities premium Retained earnings  Items of OCI Total

account

At January 1, 2020 37,201.93 80,807.04 (50.10) 117,958.87
Profit for the period - 17,429.03 - 17,429.03
Dividend on equity and tax thereon (Note 13) - (6,874.04) - (6,874.04)
Other comprehensive loss (Note 13) - - (33.95) (33.95)
At March 31, 2021 37,201.93 91,362.03 (84.05) 128,479.91
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415
Rajeev K Saxena Jamshed Naval Cooper Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 01527371 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer



Zuari Cement Limited

Standalone Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) For the year ended For the 15 months
March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 8,286.69 21,896.53
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11,994.47 15,117.33
Interest income (585.37) (2,550.89)
Interest expense 3,000.15 6,723.03
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment net 14.33 199.36
Provision for bad and doubtful debts, net - 44.16
Sundry balances written off 4.51 31.32
Unrealised foreign exchange differences (gain)/loss 220.15 0.03
Provision no longer required written back (687.26) (801.23)
Operating profit before working capital changes 22,247.67 40,659.64
Movements in working capital:
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 25,754.80 (2,060.68)
Increase / (decrease) in long-term provisions 300.52 810.79
Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions 61.91 (29.64)
Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities (33.03) (41.28)
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities 2,732.14 655.44
Increase / (decrease) in other short term liabilities 2,025.95 (1,496.88)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (1,644.13) 1,477.33
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (17,905.41) (1,122.60)
Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans - 2,770.17
Decrease / (increase) in short-term loan - 396.47
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets (366.16) (3,725.83)
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets (176.95) (792.65)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (7,170.32) (1,086.71)
Cash generated from operations 25,826.99 36,413.57
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (2,076.50) (4,507.39)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 23,750.49 31,906.18
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress and capital advances (20,348.65) (8,845.75)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment - 0.06
Redemption/ maturity of bank deposits - 769.60
Purchase of Investment (10.87) (208.43)
Interest received 111.52 1,098.49
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (20,248.00) (7,186.03)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - 15,000.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (26,613.96) (29,157.70)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) 5,280.12 -
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (refer note 45) (1,101.17) (1,242.04)
Dividend and Tax Paid thereon (5,499.23) (6,874.04)
Interest paid (2,476.80) (7,260.68)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (30,411.04) (29,534.46)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (26,908.55) (4,814.31)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 27,294.88 32,109.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 386.33 27,294.88
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Zuari Cement Limited
Standalone Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) For the year ended For the 15 months
March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - 0.14
Cheque in hand 265.40 212.43
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 120.93 769.31
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 26,313.00
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 11) 386.33 27,294.88

Explanatory notes to statement of cash flows

1. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: Liability arising from financing activities
Lease Liabilities (refer | Non-Current Borrowing
note 45) (including current
maturities)
As at 1 April 2021 2,152.49 47,917.46
Additions 1,454.32 5,280.12
Deletion for the year (23.70) -
Accretion of interest 168.28 772.51
Payments (1,101.17) (26,613.96)
At 31 March 2022 2,650.22 27,356.13
As at 1 January 2020 3,117.94 61,042.03
Additions - 15,000.00
Accretion of interest 276.59 1,033.13
Payments (1,242.04) (29,157.70)
At 31 March 2021 2,152.49 47,917.46

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Rajeev K Saxena
Partner
Membership No. 077974

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Cement Limited
CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Jamshed Naval Cooper
Managing Director
DIN: 01527371

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer

Vimal Kumar Jain
Director
DIN: 09561918
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Corporate Information

Zuari Cement Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ZCL” or “the Company”) is domiciled in India. The
Company is engaged in the manufacturing of cement and trading of other construction materials. The Company
was a joint venture between Zuari Global Limited (‘ZGL’) and Ciments Francais S.A. (‘CF’, part of the
Italcementi Group) up to May 31, 2006. Pursuant to CF’s acquisition of 50% stake held by ZGL, the Company
became a wholly owned subsidiary of CF (‘the Holding Company’), effective May 31, 2006. The Ultimate
Holding Company upto June 30, 2016 was Italcementi S.p.A (‘the Ultimate Holding Company’).

HeidelbergCement AG has completed the acquisition of Italcementi S.p.A from Italmobiliare and become the
ultimate holding Company w.e.f. July 1, 2016.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 18" July
2022.

Significant accounting policies

The Significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparation of its financial statements are listed
below:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

During the previous year, the Company has changed its financial year from January 1 - December 31 to April
1- March 31. Accordingly, the financial statements for the previous period have been prepared for 15 months
i.e. from January 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

- certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments), and

- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Summary of significant accounting policies
Business combination of entities under common control

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the company or ultimately controlled by the
same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory, are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method as follows:

l. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

Il. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

1. The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the
business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial
statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination, however, where the business
combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from that
date.
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(AVA The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee
or is adjusted against general reserve.

V. The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of
the transferee. The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus
any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of
the transferor is transferred to goodwill in accordance with Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group
(ITFG) clarification Bulletin 9.

As provided in the Scheme, the assets and liabilities including reserves of Transferor Companies as on the
Appointed Date were recorded by the Company at their existing carrying values and the amalgamation was
accounted for in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard ( Ind AS) 103, 'Business Combinations of
entities under Common Control - Appendix C' under Pooling of Interest method for the year 2019 as notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per ITFG-9.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as nhon-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a
customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of the Company’s core products Cement is recognized when delivery has taken place and
control of the goods has been transferred to the customer, and when there are no longer any unfulfilled
obligations.

The customer obtains control of the goods when the significant risks and rewards of products sold are
transferred to the customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to and accepted by the customer,
according to the specific delivery terms that have been agreed with the customer.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any discounts,
price concessions, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods
and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the provision for such discounts, price
concessions and rebates. Revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal
will not occur.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with credit terms largely ranging between 30
days and 60 days depending on the specific terms agreed to with the customer concerned, which is consistent
with market practice.

Contract Balances
Trade receivables

A trade receivable is recognized when the products are delivered to a customer as this is the point in time that
the consideration becomes unconditional because only a passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Contract assets, which is a company’s right to consideration that is conditional on something other than the
passage of time. Currently there are no contract assets.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities, which is a company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
entity has already received consideration, relate mainly to advance payments from customers which are
disclosed in note no.20. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract.

Rendering of services Income from services rendered is recognized based on agreements/arrangements with
the customers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
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substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

g. Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
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The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the asset separately, if the
component/part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially
different from that of the remaining asset. These identified components are depreciated over their useful lives;
the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the asset as follows:

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Buildings 10-60

Plant and machinery 3-25

Railway sidings 15

Furniture and fittings 10

Motor vehicles 8

Office equipment 3-25

Computer hardware 5-6

Further, the management has estimated the useful lives of asset individually costing INR 5,000 or less to be
less than one year, which is lower than those indicated in schedule 1I. The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the asset are likely to
be used.

Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in proportion of actual
quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable mineral reserves. Freehold non mining
land is not depreciated.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Cost of assets not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Costs incurred on acquisition of intangible assets are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over
useful lives, as mentioned below:

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Computer Software 5

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of
the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by
governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of
this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and
measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value
of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy
applicable to financial liabilities.

Government grants in the nature of Sale tax incentive are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Inventories

Raw materials, packing materials, coal and fuel, stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written
down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Cost of raw materials, packing materials, coal and fuel, stores and spares is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes cost incurred in bringing the material to its present location and condition. Stores and
spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of
finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis.
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Asset Category Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Land & Building 0-24

Furniture and Fixtures 1-4

Motor vehicles and other equipment 2

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (k)
Impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
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resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (refer note 45).
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of the
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provision for mine reclamation expenses

The Company provides for the estimated expenses to reclaim the quarries used for mining. The total estimate of
restoration expenses is apportioned over the estimate of mineral reserves and a provision is made based on the
minerals extracted during the year.

Site restoration expenses are incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the mine. The actual expenses
may vary based on the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenses.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Superannuation Fund (being administered by Trusts) and Employees’ State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) are
defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective funds.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. If the contribution payable to the scheme
for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized
as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using
the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:

e  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss:
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e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company
treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken
to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current
liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months
after the reporting date.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.
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Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to P&L Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using
the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS
103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within

equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,



63

or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

» Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

»  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to
use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’
in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

» Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

» Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, the expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance
sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if
the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognized in other comprehensive income as the
‘accumulated impairment amount”

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,

as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade other payables loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI.

These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the



65

statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer note 14.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management. Deposits with initial maturity greater than 3 months are considered as cash and cash equivalents
if the deposits can be converted to cash without significant penalty on principle.

Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of cement and hence entire operation represents a
single primary segment. The company operates within India only and hence geographical segment is not
applicable to the company.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
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Dividend Distributions

The Company recognizes a liability to make payment of dividend to owners of equity when the distribution is
authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the Company and is declared by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Cost or valuation

At January 1, 2020
Additions for the period
Disposals

At March 31, 2021
Additions

Disposals

At March 31, 2022

Depreciation

At January 1, 2020
Charge for the period
Disposals

At March 31, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

At March 31, 2022

Net Block
At March 31, 2021
At March 31, 2022

Freelfol.d Fre.el.lold — Plant and Railway Furniture . Office Computer Capital work in
non-mining mining Buildings . . . Motor vehicles . Total
machinery sidings## and fittings equipment hardware progress®#*
land** land#

6,699.25 6,773.25 58,335.87 131,796.20 23,654.59 631.49 361.83 442.65 491.63 229,186.76 1,638.83
- - 101.55 1,180.99 - 0.75 51.86 162.95 - 1,498.10 8,928.88
- - (323.56) (0.01) (12.54) (1.08) (4.33) (12.86) (354.38) (1,498.10)
6,699.25 6,773.25 58,437.42 132,653.63 23,654.58 619.70 412.61 601.27 478.77 230,330.48 9,069.61
140.92 - 550.35 4,260.81 - 15.17 - 36.47 - 5,003.72 20,702.10
- - - (16.93) - (7.38) - (9.54) (18.06) (51.91) (5,003.72)
6,840.17 6,773.25 58,987.77 136.897.51 23,654.58 627.49 412.61 628.20 460.71 235,282.29 24,767.99

- 236.27 9,511.12 33,012.49 6,392.46 428.80 240.39 210.49 368.07 50,400.09 -

- 32.94 2,932.54 8,492.07 2,150.14 60.45 44.66 93.46 60.96 13,867.22 -

- - - (128.99) (0.01) (10.23) (0.85) (3.89) (11.00) (154.97) -

- 269.21 12,443.66 41,375.57 8,542.59 479.02 284.20 300.06 418.03 64,112.34 -

- 23.75 2,253.11 6,878.81 1,720.11 38.93 25.96 87.91 28.45 11,057.03 -

- - - (6.76) - (6.81) - (7.52) (16.50) (37.59) -

- 292.96 14,696.77 48,247.62 10,262.70 511.14 310.16 380.45 429.98 75,131.78 -
6,699.25 6,504.04 45,993.76 91,278.06 15,111.99 140.68 128.41 301.21 60.74 166,218.14 9,069.61
6,840.17 6,480.29 44,291.00 88,649.89 13,391.88 116.35 102.45 247.75 30.73 160,150.51 24,767.99

** Awarded Land admeasuring 5.56 acres amounting INR 2.50 lakhs (March 31, 2021: 1284.31 acres of INR 516.21 lakhs) situated at Yerraguntala of which conveyance documents have been submitted to the Registering Authority for
registration. Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement between Zuari Global Limited (formerly “Zuari Industries Limited””) and the Company, sanctioned by the Honourable High Court of Bombay on January 12, 2001, the cement undertaking of
Zuari Global Limited stood vested in the Company with effect from April 1, 2000. The Company is taking necessary steps for securing the title deeds in respect of land at Yerraguntala in its name.

# Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land has been depreciated in proportion of actual quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of mineral reserve.

## The Company has leased out railway sidings under non-cancellable lease. Refer note 32(b)(ii).

**% Capital work-in-progress includes amount paid for the purchase of land at Chennai of INR 671.43 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR 671.43 Lakhs). The Government of Tamil Nadu has issued fresh GO (MS ) No. 201 dated 10/05/2022
superseding order no. 5349/LD3(1)/2011-27 dated 04/01/2018. The Company has filed application with the Government of Tamil Nadu as per the requirements of new order No. 201 dated 10/05/2022 , wherein, the Company would obtain
the ownership of the existing leasehold land at Chennai, by surrendering the aforesaid land purchased. The Company has obtained the title deeds for the aforesaid land purchased. However, process for swapping the land with the Government
authorities is still under progress. The Company has availed the exemption of short term leases for classification this lease under Ind AS 116.
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4. Intangible assets

Goodwill* Computer Total Capital
software work in
progress
Cost or valuation
At January 1, 2020 2,300.00 634.89 2,934.89 -
Additions for the period - - - -
Disposals - (1.22) (1.22) -
At March 31, 2021 2,300.00 633.67 2,933.67 -
Additions for the year - 10.00 10.00 10.00
Disposals - (126.36) (126.36) (10.00)
At March 31, 2022 2,300.00 517.31 2,817.31 -
Amortisation/ Impairment
At January 1, 2020 - 583.18 583.18 -
Charge for the period - 23.32 23.32 -
Disposals - (1.22) (1.22) -
At March 31, 2021 - 605.28 605.28 -
Charge for the year - 18.48 18.48 -
Disposals - (126.36) (126.36) -
At March 31, 2022 - 497.40 497.40 -
Net Block
At March 31, 2021 2,300.00 28.39 2,328.39 -
At March 31, 2022 2,300.00 19.91 2,319.91 -

* Consequent to the merger of Sitapuram Power Limited (SPL) with the Company in the previous year, the assets, liabilities and reserves
pertaining to SPL, as appearing in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, immediately before the merger, are recognized at
their carrying values. Accordingly, Goodwill of INR 2,300 Lakhs appearing in the consolidated financial statement of the Company is
recognized at it’s carrying value.

Capital work in progress ('CWIP') Ageing Schedule

Rs. in Lakhs
Amount of CWIP for a period of
Projects in progress Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
As at 31 March 2022 4,716.00 17,235.35 2,543.58 273.06 24,767.99
As at 31 March 2021 6,636.42 2,092.70 10.01 330.48 9,069.61

Project execution plans are modulated as per requirement on annual basis and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.
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5. Non-current investments

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid)
Subsidiaries
U d equity instr
A. 22,496,691 (March 31, 2021: 22,496,691) equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up in Gulbarga Cement 10,541.93 10,541.93
Limited ("GCL").[refer note (i)]

10,541.93 10,541.93
Others
U d equity instr
A. 22,460 (March 31, 2021: 22,460) equity shares of INR. 10/- each fully paid up of Vena Energy Power 232 232
Resources Private Limited [refer note (ii)]
B. 64,182 (March 31, 2021: 44,962) equity shares of INR. 10/- each fully paid up of Echanda Urja Private 6.42 4.50
Limited. [refer note (iii)]

8.74 6.82

Unquoted preference shares
A. 14,419 (March 31, 2021: 14,419) Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Non-Participative Preference shares 14.88 14.88
of INR. 100/- each fully paid up in Vena Energy Power Resources Private Limited [refer note (ii)]

14.88 14.88
23.62 21.70

(i). Investments in Gulbarga Cement Limited

The Company has given long term loan of INR 6,848.69 lakhs to Gulbarga Cement Limited and carries an interest at SBI base rate plus 1% per annum. The loan is
repayable in 12 quarterly instalments along with interest accrued after expiry of 10 years from the date of loan. To comply with requirements of Ind AS 109, the Company
has disclosed the loan given at amortised cost. On the date of transition to Ind AS, the difference between the loan given and fair value of the loan amounting to INR
2,067.61 lakhs is accounted as investment in GCL. Effective from 01.08.2019 rate of interest is changed to 5 years G-sec rate or 5 years fixed deposit rate offered by SBI
whichever is higher plus 50 basis points as margin.

During the year, the Company has given additional term loan of INR 400 Lakhs to Gulbarga Cement Limited for a period of 3 years. The Board of director also approved
for extension of existing term loan for further period of 3 years. Rate of interest also changed to 3 years G-sec rate effective from 01.10.2021.

(ii). Investments in Vena Energy Power Resources Private Limited (formerly known as Energon Power Resources Private Limited)

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company, had executed a Share Subscription and Shareholders Agreement (SSHA) dated June 2, 2014 with Energon Power
Resources Private Limited (‘EPRPL”) and Energon Renewables Private Limited. Pursuant to the terms of SSHA, the Company has invested a sum of INR 2.32 Lakhs to
acquire 2.89% equity stake and INR 14.88 Lakhs to acquire 2.89% cumulative compulsorily convertible non-participative preference shares in ERPL in the year 2014. This
provide an entitlement of 6 MW dedicated wind energy capacity in EPRPL for the Company.

(iii). Investment in Echanda Urja Private Limited

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company, had executed a Shareholders Agreement (SHA) dated April 26, 2016 with Echanda Urja Private Limited (“EUPL”)
and NuPower Renewables Private Limited for the procurement of wind energy upto 10 MKWh. The Company made a further investment of INR 1.10 lakhs during the year
ended March 31, 2018 and INR 1.92 lakhs during the current year in EUPL for the supply of wind energy upto 18.4 MKWh.

6. Loans
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loan to related parties
Unsecured, considered good
Inter-corporate loan to Gulbarga Cement Limited* 11,530.53 11,042.66 - -

11,530.53 11,042.66

* For disclosure required under section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013, refer note 5(i) and note 31.
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7. Other financial assets

Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - - 34.71
Interest accrued on other deposits - - 91.71 86.67
Security deposit (unsecured, considered good) 2,737.02 2,717.08 421.96 406.31
VAT/GST Incentive receivables
- Considered good 5,216.37 4,870.15 - -
- Doubtful - 392.60 - -
7,953.39 7,979.83 513.67 527.69
Allowances for doubtful receivables - (392.60) - -
7,953.39 7,587.23 513.67 527.69
8. Other assets Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good 960.30 2,114.47 - -
960.30 2,114.47 - -
Other- unsecured, considered good
Advance income tax, net of provision for tax 1,792.83 1,160.82 - -
Balance with government authorities 155.75 45.00 3,531.09 1,399.32
Amount paid under protest 8,326.79 8,096.79 - -
Employee advances - - 29.94 25.78
Advance to suppliers - -
- Considered good - - 6,734.43 2,306.78
- Doubtful - - 118.85 118.85
Prepaid expenses 271.29 268.10 1,530.73 928.50
Other receivables 30.00 30.00 2.15 2.15
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable (30.00) (30.00) - -
10,546.66 9,570.71 11,947.19 4,781.38
Allowances for doubtful advance and deposits - - (118.85) (118.85)
11,506.96 11,685.18 11,828.34 4,662.53

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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9. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Raw materials (includes in transit INR 11.37 lakhs) (March, 2021: INR 18.16 lakhs) 2,306.15 1,804.56
Work-in-progress 5,146.43 1,470.48
Finished goods 2,666.51 1,217.90
Consumable stores and spares (includes in transit INR 190.53 lakhs) (March 31, 2021: INR 206.12 lakhs) 22,975.64 10,696.38

33,094.73 15,189.32

10. Trade receivables
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Trade receivables 9,328.77 7,401.27
Receivables from other related parties* 122.22 405.59
9,450.99 7,806.86

Break-up for trade receivable:

Secured, considered good 5,115.53 3,302.52
Unsecured, considered good 4,335.46 4,504.34
Trade receivables - credit impaired 542.46 607.02
9,993.45 8,413.88

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired (542.46) (607.02)
9,450.99 7,806.86

Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022 Rs. in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Current but Less than 6 6 months - 1

not due months year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 6,898.66 2,288.08 264.25 - - - 9,450.99
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - 45.41 237.93 92.94 166.18 542.46
6,898.66 2,288.08 309.66 237.93 92.94 166.18 9,993.45
As at 31 March 2021 Rs. in Lakhs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Current but Less than 6 6 months - 1

not due months year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 6628.64 1178.22 - - - - 7,806.86
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - 162.6 141.26 133.13 38.65 131.38 607.02
6,628.64 1,340.82 141.26 133.13 38.65 131.38 8,413.88
*Include dues from companies where directors are interested (refer note 31).
11. Cash and cash equivalents Current

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand - 0.14
Cheque in hand 265.40 212.43
Balance with banks:

- On current accounts 120.93 769.31
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 26,313.00
Total (A) 386.33 27,294.88

Other bank balances
Deposits as margin money against guarantees 217.38 208.43
217.38 208.43
603.71 27,503.31

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits made for varying periods of upto 3 months, depending on the immediate cash requirement of
the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand - 0.14
Cheque in hand 265.40 212.43
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 120.93 769.31
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 26,313.00

386.33 27,294.88
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12. Share capital Equity Shares Preference Shares

Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized share capital
At January 1, 2020 348,000,000 34,800.00 140,000,000 14,000.00
Increase/(decrease) during the period - - - -
At March 31, 2021 348,000,000 34,800.00 140,000,000 14,000.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - - -
At March 31, 2022 348,000,000 34,800.00 140,000,000 14,000.00

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued equity capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number Amount

At January 1, 2020 274,961,400 27,496.14
Increase/(decrease) during the period - -
At March 31, 2021 274,961,400 27,496.14
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At March 31, 2022 274,961,400 27,496.14

(a) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding Company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates is given below
Out of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ciments Frangais S.A, the Holding Company 266,461,350 266,461,350
Compagine Pour I'Investment Financier En Inde 8,500,000 8,500,000
Investcim S.A.S 10 10
Sax S.A.S 10 10
Cafipar S.A.S 10 10
Tercim S.A.S 10 10
Menaf S.A.S 10 10
(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
Name of the shareholder
Ciments Francais S.A, the Holding Company 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91%

In the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company has not issued any bonus shares or has bought back any shares.

The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment.

c. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2022 is as follows:

Promoter name As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

% Change during the

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares Year
Ciments Frangais S.A 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91% -
Total 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91% -

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Promoter name As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

% Change during the

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares Year
Ciments Frangais S.A 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91% -
Total 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91% -
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13. Other equity

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A) Retained earnings
At the commencement of the year/period 91,362.03 80,807.04
Add: Profit for the year/period 7,588.17 17,429.03
Less: Appropriations

Dividend on equity shares (refer note 36) (5,499.23) (6,874.04)
Closing balance (A) 93,450.97 91,362.03
B) Remeasurement gain/ (losses) of net defined benefit plans, net of tax
At the commencement of the year/period (84.05) (50.10)
Additions during the year/period 27.11 (33.95)
Closing balance (B) (56.94) (84.05)
Securities premium account 37,201.93 37,201.93
Closing balance (C) 37,201.93 37,201.93
Total (A+B+C) 130,595.96 128,479.91

Nature and purpose of reserves:

a) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited
purposes in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013. No movement during the

year/period.

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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14. Borrowings
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

From related parties (unsecured)
-Rupee denominated bonds (“masala bond”) (refer note (i)) - - - 25,000.00
-Inter corporate loan (refer note (ii)) - 15,000.00 15,000.00 -

- 15,000.00 15,000.00 25,000.00

Other loans and advances
Loan repayable on demand (from bank)

-Bank overdraft (unsecured) (refer note (iii)) - - 5,280.12 -
Deferred payment liability
- Sales tax deferral loan (secured) (refer note (iv)) 5,095.24 6,304.09 1,980.77 1,613.37
5,095.24 6,304.09 7,260.89 1,613.37
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 5,095.24 6,304.09 1,980.77 1,613.37
Unsecured borrowings - 15,000.00 20,280.12 25,000.00
5,095.24 21,304.09 22,260.89 26,613.37

Details of repayment terms, interest and maturity

(i) Rupee denominated bonds (“masala bond”) issued to HeidelbergCement AG, with a total outstanding balance of INR 25,000 lakhs at the begining of the
year. The interest is payable semi-annually at the rate of 8.70% per annum. The Company has repaid final installment of INR 25,000 Lakhs on due date of 16
January 2022.

(ii) The Company has taken long term loan of INR 15,000 Lakhs which is repayable to Heidelberg Cement India Limited after expiry of 2 years from the date
of loan and carries an interest at 275 basic points (bps) over and above the prevailing yield rate on government securities of three years on the date of
disbursement of loan. The rate of interest so determined will remain fixed for 2 years and will be payable at quarterly intervals.

(iif) The Company has availed unsecured overdraft facilities from Bank, repayable on demand to meet short term working capital requirement.

(iv) To promote the industries in backward area (i.e. at Yerraguntla, Andhra Pradesh), Government of Andhra Pradesh, announced an interest free sales tax loan
facility. To avail the facility, the Company has entered into an agreement with the Government of Andhra Pradesh for deferring payment of sales tax collected
during the period February 15, 1999, to February 14, 2013 (fourteen (14) years). The deferred amount will be repaid by the year ended March 31, 2027. The
amount repayable within a period of one year from the reporting date, i.e. INR 1,980.77 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR 1,613.37 Lakhs) is included in current
maturities of long-term borrowings. It is secured by way of movable and immovable properties of the Company.

As per Ind AS 109, Sales Tax Deferment loan results into an interest-free loan from the government. Accordingly, the Company has retrospectively measured

the sales tax deferral loan as on transition date by arriving at the present value, which is the discounted amount of the loan computed using the market rate of
interest for a similar loan for the period for which the entity is not required to deposit the sales tax amount with the government.

Non-current

14A. Other financial liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Payable 146.16 162.10
146.16 162.10

15. Provisions
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (note 33) 403.85 309.01 - -

Compensated absences - - 536.09 474.18
403.85 309.01 536.09 474.18

Others

Provision for litigation (refer note 32(d)) 6,857.87 6,693.87 - -

Provision for site restoration expense (refer note 32(e)) 1,091.38 1,091.38 - -

7,949.25 7,785.25 - -
8,353.10 8,094.26 536.09 474.18
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16. Income tax & deferred tax liability

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:

Statement of Profit or loss : March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 1,444 .49 5,150.06
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year - -
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (745.97) (682.56)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 698.52 4,467.50

Other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the period:

Net (gains)/losses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 14.57 (18.23)
Income tax charged to OCI 14.57 (18.23)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate for March 31, 2022 March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
and March 31, 2021:

Accounting profit before income tax 8,286.69 21,896.53

Total tax charge computed on the basis of the applicable rates 2,895.70 7,651.52

Deductible expenses for tax purposes (649.27) (594.39)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 21.80 142.09

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 105.29 136.28

Impact of change in tax rate [refer note below (i)] (1,675.00) (2,868.00)
At the effective income tax rate of 8.43% (March 31, 2021: 20.40%) 698.52 4,467.50

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 698.52 4,467.50

Company is entitled to avail exemption under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 from income tax on profits of business.

(i) 'The Government of India on 20 September, 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted a new Section 115BAA in the Income
Tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/conditions defined in the said section.
The Company is continuing to provide for income tax at the old rates, based on the available outstanding MAT credit entitlement and various exemptions and
deductions available to the Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, the Company has applied the lower income tax rates on the deferred tax assets
/ liabilities to the extent these are expected to be realised or settled in the future period when the Company may be subjected to lower tax rate and accordingly
reversed the net deferred tax liability INR 2,868.00 lakhs during the period ended 31 March 2021 and INR 1,675.00 lakhs during the year ended 31 March
2022.

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial 18,754.83 19,487.43
reporting

Gross deferred tax liability 18,754.83 19,487.43

Deferred tax asset

Unused tax credits (MAT credit entitlement) - (refer note (i) below) 515.56 646.84
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes on 847.98 612.73
payment basis

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 173.57 202.13
Provision for employee related liabilities 460.85 537.46
Gross deferred tax asset 1,997.96 1,999.16
Net deferred tax liability 16,756.87 17,488.27

(i) MAT credits are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of MAT credit to be
utilised during this specified period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.

The Company reviews MAT credit entitlement at each reporting date and in the current year the Company based on future profit and tax projections believes
that sufficient taxable profits will be generated to utilize the full MAT credit.

17. Other non-current liabilities
March 31,2022  March 31,2021

Income received in advance 553.21 586.24
553.21 586.24
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18. Trade payables

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 41)
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Trade Payables
- To related parties (refer note 31)
- To others

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

As at 31 March 2021

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

19. Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note 31)
Interest accrued but not due on deposits

Trade and other deposits

Payable against purchase of property, plant and equipment
Derivative liability

20. Other liabilities

Contract liabilities
Advance from customers

Income received in advance

Statutory liabilities

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
384.72 137.52
50,973.32 25,916.89
51,358.04 26,054.41
18,928.82 1,028.18
32,429.22 25,026.23
51,358.04 26,054.41
Rs in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
384.72 - - - 384.72
48,703.62 688.73 883.35 697.62 50,973.32
49,088.34 688.73 883.35 697.62 51,358.04
Rs in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
137.52 - - - 137.52
22,738.48 1,884.14 702.33 591.94 25,916.89
22,876.00 1,884.14 702.33 591.94 26,054.41

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

- 416.88
- 0.56
14,408.60 11,877.00
1,294.99 2,085.70
213.16 12.62
15,916.75 14,392.76
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
3,318.62 2,604.25
33.03 33.03
5,209.46 3,897.88
8,561.11 6,535.16

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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21. Revenue from operations

Sale of products

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2021

Cement 189,484.68 217,755.64
Clinker 13,083.02 9,482.52
Others - 4.79
202,567.70 227,242.95
Sales of Services 32.38 40.16
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 520.70 452.09
Revenue from disposal of hazardous waste 159.57 344.67
Government grant- SGST incentive (refer note 34) 2,000.60 2,603.31
2,680.87 3,400.07
205,280.95 230,683.18

21.1 Disaggregated Revenue Information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contract with
customers:

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2021

India 205,248.57 230,643.02
Outside India 32.38 40.16
Total Revenue from contract with customers 205,280.95 230,683.18
21.2 Contract Balances

Trade receivables (refer Note 10) 9,450.99 7,806.86
Contract liabilities (refer Note 20) 3,318.62 2,604.25

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days.

21.3 The performance obligation is satisfied upon supply of goods as and when delivered and accordingly, there is no outstanding performance
obligation as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

21.4 Sales of product is net of INR 28,403.84 Lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 15,808.57 Lakhs) on account of cash discount, rebates and incentives
given to customers.

22. Other income
For the year ended  For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Interest income
On bank deposits 358.81 1,031.72
On inter-corporate loan@ 128.86 1,154.40
Others 97.70 364.77
Provision no longer required written back 687.26 801.23
Rental income 45.93 57.41
Miscellaneous income 115.17 170.09
1,433.73 3,579.62

(@ Interest income on inter-corporate loan include interest expenses of INR 281.00 lakhs mainly on account of further extension of loan period for 3
years (31 March 2021: Interest income of INR 641.19 Lakhs) as per Ind AS 109).
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23. Cost of raw material and packing material consumed

Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year/period
Add: Purchases during the year/period
Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year/period

24. Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Opening stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Less: closing stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

25. Employee benefits expense*

Salaries, wages and bonus

Gratuity expense (refer note 33)

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

26. Finance costs*

Interest expense
On term loans and cash credit from banks
On long term borrowings from related party (refer note 31)
On lease liabilities
On others#
Bank charges

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,804.56 1,192.54
33,562.24 36,687.32
2,306.15 1,804.56
33,060.65 36,075.30

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,217.90 1,447.45

1,470.48 3,091.75

2,688.38 4,539.20

2,666.51 1,217.90

5,146.43 1,470.48

7,812.94 2,688.38

(5,124.56) 1,850.82

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
7,766.85 9,459.26
150.09 192.82
451.01 548.98
212.15 184.78
8,580.10 10,385.84

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2021

28.05 73.94
1,734.04 4,981.64
168.28 276.59
1,069.78 1,390.86
85.03 66.65
3,085.18 6,789.68

(# Interest on others for the year ended March 31, 2022 include INR 772.51 lakhs (March 31 2021: INR 1,033.13 Lakhs) represents interest

expenses on sales tax deferral loan as per Ind AS 109)

*Directly attributable expenses in relation to project under construction have been transferred to capital work in progress. (refer note 46)

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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27. Depreciation and amortisation

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation on Right-of-use-asset (refer note 45)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
11,057.03 13,867.22
918.96 1,226.79

18.48 23.32
11,994.47 15,117.33

28. Other expenses*

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Power and fuel 75,681.74 62,367.16
Freight outward 39,850.26 45,269.16
Consumption of stores, loose tools and spare parts 6,549.60 8,048.03
Rent 338.66 223.37
Rates and taxes 5,645.48 6,255.48
Legal and professional 587.84 543.66
Payment to auditor [Refer note (i) below] 56.17 35.09
Repairs and maintenance:
- plant and machinery 4,634.82 4,794.15
- buildings 285.90 150.06
- others 97.03 166.46
License fee (refer note 31) 2,340.16 2,765.42
Provision for bad and doubtful debts, net - 44.16
Sundry balances written off (gross) 4.51 31.32
Selling and distribution expenses 2,953.56 3,292.04
Sales commission 1,190.45 1,310.95
Advertisement and sales promotion 831.44 689.78
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 35) 301.31 389.99
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 14.33 199.36
Insurance 997.52 856.44
Traveling and conveyance 497.46 671.36
IT and business support charges 1,187.08 1,557.09
Communication 86.28 125.14
Foreign exchange loss, net 543.90 354.35
Miscellaneous expenses 2,156.65 2,007.28

146,832.15 142,147.30

(i) Payment to auditor

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

As statutory auditor (excluding goods and services tax)
Reimbursement of expenses (excluding goods and services tax)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
56.00 35.00
0.17 0.09
56.17 35.09

*Directly attributable expenses in relation to project under construction have been transferred to capital work in progress. (refer note 46)

29. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

Profit after tax available to equity shareholders

Net profit for calculation of basic/Diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic/Diluted EPS (in lakhs)
Basic and diluted EPS (in INR)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
7,588.17 17,429.03
7,588.17 17,429.03
2,749.61 2,749.61

2.76 6.34
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30. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, land access and other
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome
of future events.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company has based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant & equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The
useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over
the remaining useful life of the assets.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment defined benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 33.

(iii) Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Refer Note 37 of the financials.

(iv) Mines reclamation expenses:
In determining the fair value of the Mines Restoration Obligation, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected cost of
mines restoration and the expected timing of those costs.

(v) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the nature of business, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The
amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

(vi) Impairment of Financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(vii) Provision for inventories

Management reviews the aged inventory on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory item with the

respective net realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-

moving items. Management believes that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial statements.

(viii) Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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31. Related party disclosures

a. Names of related parties and related party relationship

Names of related parties where control exists irr ive of whether tr have occurred or not:

Ultimate holding Company
Holding Company

Subsidiary Companies

HeidelbergCement AG
Ciments Francais S.A

Gulbarga Cement Limited

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period/year:
Entities under common control HeidelbergCement India Limited ("HCIL")
HC Trading Malta
HC Trading India (P) Limited

“alcia SA

HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd.
HC Asia Pte Ltd
Additional related parties as per the Companies Act, 2013:
Chief Financial Officer Mr. Vimal Kumar Choudhary

Mr. L. R. Neelakanta upto March 31, 2021
Mr. Shrinivas Harapanahalli w.e.f April 01, 2021 (till April 04, 2022)

Company Secretary

Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper, Managing Director

Mr. Kevin Gluskie, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Juan-Francisco Defalque, Non-Executive Director

Ms. Soek Peng Sim, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari, Non-Executive Director (till June 09, 2022)
Mr. Vimal Kumar Jain, Non-Executive Director (w.e.f June 10, 2022)

Key Management Personnel

b. Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered in to with related parties for the relevant periods:

i. Transactions during the year/period:

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

Gulbarga Cement Limited Interest income on loan (including Ind AS adjustment) (refer 128.86
note 22)
Loan Given 400.00
HC Trading Malta Purchase of Consumables (Petcoke) -
HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd. Purchase of Consumables (Petcoke) 17.564.27
HeidelbergCement AG Masala bonds repaid 25,000.00
Interest expenses on Masala Bonds (refer note 26) 1,734.04
IT and other Business support charges 1,187.08
Licence fee (refer note 28) 2,340.16
Service income 32.38
HeidelbergCement India Limited Sale of Clinker 3,256.32
Purchase of materials -
Loan taken from HCIL -
Interest expenses on Loan 1,145.70
Retirement obligation for transferred employees -
Business support charges 751.86
Ciments Calcia SA Liability written back -
CTG S.p.A. Liability written back 7.46
HC Asia pte Ltd Recovery of expenses -

HC Trading India (P) Limited

ii. Balance outstanding at the year end

Nature of transaction

Purchase of tangible assets

Name of related party

March 31, 2022

Trade receivables HeidelbergCement India Limited 110.17
HC Trading Malta 12.05
Trade payables Ttalcementi S.p.A -
HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd. 17,787.79
HeidelbergCement India Limited 195.26
HeidelbergCement AG 945.77
HC Trading India (P) Limited -
CTG S.p.A. -
Interest accrued but not due HeidelbergCement AG -
Loan payable HeidelbergCement AG -
Loan payable HeidelbergCement India Limited 15,000.00
Inter-corporate loan Gulbarga Cement Limited 11,530.53

(Refer Note 6)

iii. Tr ions with key

Employee benefits

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

personnel*

# All the transactions are inclusive of tax and duty, wherever applicable.
*As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to the key management personnel are not

included above.

For the year ended

For the 15 months

ended March 31, 2021

1,154.40

4,325.14

25,000.00
4,981.64
1,557.09
2,765.42

40.16

3,918.49
169.38
15,000.00
77.55
52.68
823.78

17.79

2333

13.62

March 31, 2021

396.73
8.86

5.29
171.66
841.60

0.87

8.76
416.88

25,000.00

15,000.00

11,042.66

For the 15 months

March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
162.25 314.13
162.25 314.13
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32. Commitments and Contingencies

a) Capital Commitments
i. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) INR 4,830.57 lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR
13,627.80 lakhs).

b) Other commitments (Leases)
i. Operating lease: Company as lessor

The Company has leased out railway sidings under non-cancellable lease. Total rental income under such leases during the year amounted to INR 12.89 lakhs
(March 31,2021: INR 16.11 lakhs). Future minimum lease payments expected to receive under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Not later than one year 12.89 12.89
Later than one year but not later than five years 51.57 51.57
Later than five years 164.37 177.26
¢) Contingent Liability
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sales Tax/Trade Tax/Entry Tax 8,934.82 8,934.82
Excise Duty/Service Tax/CENVAT Credit 5,751.89 6,585.90
Customs duty 942.07 942.07
Income tax matters 15,526.29 13,753.74
Electricity charges 1,407.29 2,152.08
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 4,018.84 4,799.88
36,581.20 37,168.49

During the period ended March 31, 2021, the Company has received a demand from The Southern Power Distribution Company of Telangana Limited
(TSSPDCL) aggregating INR 6,338 lakhs (including interest of INR 4,832 Lakhs) towards wheeling and transmission charges for FY 2002-03 to FY 2008-09.
The Company has challenged the said demand before the Hon’ble High Court of Telangana on the grounds, inter alia, that the charges are to be borne by the
power generators based on the contractual obligations with the electricity authorities. The Hon’ble High Court vide order dated August 17, 2020 granted interim
relief by suspending the above said demand. The Company has also obtained an opinion from external legal firm who has opined that Company would be able to
defend the demand on the above grounds.

The Company had executed agreements with power generators for the supply of power, which stipulates the cost per unit of power includes all charges etc.,
except with one supplier wherein the wheeling and transmission charges are to be borne by the company. Therefore, a provision was created in the books of
accounts for a sum of INR 766.64 lakhs towards the wheeling and transmission charges for the power drawn from that power generator.

d) Provision for litigations

Balance as at Additions during the Amounts Balance as at
Apr 1, 2021 year charged to reversed/utilised Mar 31, 2022
respective expenses during the year
head
Electricity duty and Charges 899.86 - - 899.86
(133.23) (766.63) - (899.86)
Sales tax matters 1,778.77 164.00 - 1,942.77
(1,925.34) - (146.57) (1,778.77)
Custom duty 1,377.89 - - 1,377.89
(1,377.89) - - (1,377.89)
Road Tax 94.86 - - 94.86
(94.86) - - (94.86)
Income tax matters 2,542.49 - - 2,542.49
(2,542.49) - - (2,542.49)
Total 6,693.87 164.00 - 6,857.87
(6,073.81) (766.63) (146.57) (6,693.87)

Note: Figures in brackets are for the previous year

Above provisions have been made against demands raised by various authorities. All these cases are under litigation and are pending with various authorities;
expected timing of resulting outflow of economic benefits cannot be specified. Amount deposited under protest against these provisions are shown under other
assets (refer note 8)
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€) Movement of provision for site restoration expenses during the period as required by Ind AS 37

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening provision (refer note 15) 1,091.38 1,091.38
Add: Provision made during the year/period - -
Less: Provision utilised during the year/period - -
Closing provision 1,091.38 1,091.38

Site restoration expense is incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of mines. The actual expenses may vary based on the nature of restoration and the estimate of
restoration expenses.

33. Gratuity
The Company has two post-employment funded plans, namely Gratuity and Superannuation.

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (Act). Under the Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. Gratuity being administered by a Trust is computed as 15 days salary,
for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The Gratuity plan for the Company is a
defined benefit scheme where annual contributions as demanded by the insurer are deposited to a Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide gratuity benefits. The Trust
Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/liability in the books
of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the projected unit credit method.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for
the Gratuity:

Statement of profit and loss
(i) Net employee benefit expense (recognized in employee cost)
For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current service cost 141.67 176.06
Interest cost on benefit obligation 125.26 153.67
Expected return on plan assets (116.84) (136.91)
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss 150.09 192.82
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions (22.82) (15.55)
- changes in financial assumptions 9.61) 22.53
- change in experience adjustments (6.58) 29.35
- return on plan asset (excluding interest income) (2.68) 15.85
Amount recognised in OCI (41.69) 52.18

Balance Sheet

(ii) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability
The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components.

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation For the year ended For the 15 months ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,134.66 1,956.41
Current service cost 141.67 176.06
Interest cost on benefit obligation 125.26 153.67
Other significant events

- Increase/(decrease) due to effect of any business combinations/divestitures/transfers - 45.32
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions (22.82) (15.55)
- changes in financial assumptions (9.61) 22.53
- experience adjustments (6.58) 29.35
Benefit paid (317.39) (233.13)

Balance at the end of the year 2,045.19 2,134.66
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Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets

Particulars For the year ended For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,825.65 1,884.91
Interest income 116.84 136.91
Contribution by employer 13.57 52.81
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income 2.68 (15.85)
Benefits paid (317.39) (233.13)
Balance at the end of the year 1,641.35 1,825.65

Details of provision for gratuity
For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation 2,045.19 2,134.66
Present value of plan assets 1,641.35 1,825.65
Net defined benefit liability/(assets) 403.84 309.01

(iii) Defined benefit obligation
- Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:
For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 6.50% 6.40%
Salary increase rate 7.50% 7.50%
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (IALM) (2006-  Mortality (IALM) (2006-

2008) (modified) Ult. 2008) (modified) Ult.
Withdrawl 8.00% 5.00%
Retirement age Up to DGM- 58 years Up to DGM- 58 years

GM and above 60 years GM and above 60 years
Note
The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market.

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.
- Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below:

Sensitivity level Impact on DBO
Gratuity Plan For the year ended For the 15 months For the year ended For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2022 ended March 31, March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2021
Assumptions
Discount rate -0.50% -0.50% 48.94 58.48
0.50% 0.50% (46.72) (55.47)
Salary increase rate -0.50% -0.50% (41.84) (50.43)
0.50% 0.50% 43.39 52.62

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

(iv) Plan assets
The principal plan assets consists of a scheme of insurance taken by the Trust, which is a qualifying insurance poliy. As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, 100% of the
plan assets were vested in investment with insurance company.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 319.16 355.05
Between 2 and 5 years 1,313.96 1,154.44
Beyond 5 years 1,226.18 1,318.46

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years (March 31, 2021: 6 years).

B. Superannuation Fund

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund (being administered by Trust) are funded defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable. The
contributions for the year ended March 31, 2022 is INR 82.19 lakhs and for the year ended March 31, 2021 is INR 87.67 lakhs.
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34. Sales tax incentive

The Company is entitled to benefits under Package Scheme of Incentives - 2007 as notified by Government of Maharashtra for the Manufacturing set up for cement
production facility at Solapur, Maharashtra w.e.f. September 1, 2015. Under the said policy, the Company is entitled for refund of Value Added Tax ( which is now
subsumed on GST) , exemption from electricity duty and waiver of stamp duty for a period of seven (7) years. Accordingly, for the period ended March 31, 2022, the
Company has recognised INR 2000.60.31 lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR 2603.31 lakhs) as income and disclosed under "Other operating revenue".

35. Corporate social responsibility (CSR):

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

Particulars For the year ended For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 280.60 261.48
(b) Amount spent during the period ended March 31, 2022 In cash Yet to be paid Total
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 301.31 - 301.31
Total 301.31 - 301.31
(c) Amount spent during the period ended March 31, 2021 In cash Yet to be paid Total
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 389.99 - 389.99
Total 389.99 - 389.99

36. Dividend paid and proposed:
For the year ended  For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Dividend declared and paid during the year:
Final dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2021: Rs 2.00 per share 5,499.23 -

Interim Dividend for the year ended on 31 December 2019: Rs 2.5 per share - 6,874.04
5,499.23 -
Proposed Dividends on equity shares:
Proposed dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2022: Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. 2.00 per share ) - 5,499.23
R 5,499.23

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2022.

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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37. Fair Value
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair Value
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial assets

Investment 23.62 21.70 23.62 21.70
Loans and advances 11,530.53 11,042.66 11,530.53 11,042.66
Trade receivables 9,450.99 7,806.86 9,450.99 7,806.86
Cash and cash equivalents 386.33 27,294.88 386.33 27,294.88
Other financial assets 8,684.44 8,323.35 8,684.44 8,323.35
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 27,356.13 47917.46 27,356.13 47,917.46
Trade payables 51,358.04 26,054.41 51,358.04 26,054.41
Other financial liability 16,062.91 14,554.86 16,062.91 14,554.86
Lease liabilities 2,650.22 2,152.49 2,650.22 2,152.49

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, trade and other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

38. Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Assets measured at fair value: Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
Date of Valuation Total active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

FVTPL financial investments

Unquoted instruments March 31, 2022 23.62 - - 23.62
March 31,2021 21.70 - - 21.70

The fair value of unquoted instruments is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

39. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise of trade payables, other payables and borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include security deposits, receivables and cash and
cash equivalents which are part of the Company's operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk. The policies and procedures considered by Company’s senior management to oversee
the management of these risks has been summarised below.

A. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Company is
exposed to three types of market risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and and other price risk, such as commodity risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency). As on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has following foreign currency exposures:

Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure
a. Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Currency in foreign Amount in INR in foreign currency Amount in INR (in
currency (in lakhs) (in lakhs) lakhs)
(in lakhs)
Forward exchanged contracts (to hedge trade USD 304.03 23,457.53 44.71 3,296.26

payables)

304.03 23.457.53 44.71 3,296.26
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b. Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Currency in foreign Amount in INR in foreign currency Amount in INR (in
currency (in lakhs) (in lakhs) lakhs)
(in lakhs)
Trade payables EUR 0.11 9.39 0.05 4.39
UsD - - 0.29 21.50
9.39 25.89
Advance to supplier EUR 334 281.31 0.22 19.24
CHF 0.85 73.09 - -
354.40 19.24
Due to related parties EUR 0.10 8.02 0.51 43.56
UsD 0.16 12.28 0.12 8.86
20.30 52.42

*USD — US Dollar, EUR — Euro, CHF - Swiss Franc
Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact

on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

5% increase in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
EUR 13.11 (1.42)
USD (0.62) (1.50)
CHF 3.67 -

Note: If the rate is decreased by 500 bps, profit will increase by an equal amount for March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s policy is to maintain most of its borrowings at fixed rate. The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in
market interest rates.

Commodity price risk
The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities which is moderated by optimising the procurement under fuel supply agreement. Its
operating activities require the on-going purchase or continuous supply of coal. Therefore the Company monitors its purchases closely to optimise the price.

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations towards settlement of financial liabilities. Financial
liabilities are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and other similar credit facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

As at March 31, 2022 <1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings* 22,260.89 7,361.53 - 29,622.42
Trade payables** 51,358.04 - - 51,358.04
Other financial liabilities 15,916.75 146.16 - 16,062.91
Lease liabilities 616.32 2,033.90 - 2,650.22
As at March 31, 2021 <1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings* 26,613.37 22,475.10 1,867.20 50,955.67
Trade payables** 26,054.41 - - 26,054.41
Other financial liabilities 14,392.76 162.10 - 14,554.86
Lease liabilities 987.35 1,165.14 - 2,152.49

* Borrowings are shown without Ind AS adjustment.
** Trade payables are repayable on demand

C. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.
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Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed in line with the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed through internal evaluation which takes into account the financial parameters, past experience with the counterparty and
current economic/market trends. Individual credit limits are thus defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by advances, security deposits, bank guarantees etc. Trade receivables are
consisting of a large number of customers. The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer.

for the year ended March 31, 2022

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made with approved counterparties. Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions
is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions who have been assigned high credit rating by international and
domestic rating agencies.

40. Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Borrowings 27,356.13 47.917.46
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (386.33) (27,294.88)
Net debt 26,969.80 20,622.58
Equity attributable to equity share holder 158,092.10 155,976.05
Capital and debt 185,061.90 176,598.63
Gearing ratio 14.57% 11.68%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit
the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in
the current period.

41. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S.N Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at|
the end of each accounting year

-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises (Not overdue) 384.72 137.52
-Interest due on above - -

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. - -
) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for]|
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

42. Segment reporting

The Company is predominantly engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of cement, which constitutes a single business segment and is governed
by similar set of risks and returns. The operations of the Company primarily cater to the market in India, which the management views as a single segment.
The management monitors the operating results of its single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The Company is domiciled in India. The Company’s revenue from operations from external customers primarily relate to operations in India and all the non-
current assets of the Company are located in India.

43. Transfer pricing

The Company maintains the information and documents as required under the transfer pricing regulations under Section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act,
1961. The management is in the process of updating the transfer pricing documentation for the financial year 2021-2022 and is of the view that its
transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense
and that of provision for taxation.

44. The Company is taking all possible steps to mitigate the effect of COVID-19 on its business and operations to the extent possible and has considered all
possible effects from COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial results. The management has also evaluated the possible impact of the pandemic on the
business operations and based on its assessment of the current Indicators of the future economic conditions, it is expected that the carrying amount of assets
will be recovered.
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45 Leases
Effective 1 January, 2020, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 January 2020 using
the modified retrospective methods. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payment discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset equal to the lease liability adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit before
tax and earning per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease payment.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Right of Use of assets

Particulars Land & Buildings Furniture & Fixture Vehicles Total
Initial recognition as at 1 January 2020 6,310.37 70.71 703.29 7,084.37
Additions for the Period - - - -
Disposals - - - -

At 31 March 2021 6,310.37 70.71 703.29 7,084.37
Additions for the year 1,338.74 115.58 - 1,454.32
Disposals (78.85) - - (78.85)
At 31 March 2022 7,570.26 186.29 703.29 8,459.84

Depreciation/ Amortization
At 1 January 2020 - - - -

Depreciation Expenses 797.03 44.20 385.56 1,226.79
Prepaid rent amortisation 208.74 - - 208.74
Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2021 1,005.77 44.20 385.56 1,435.53
Depreciation Expenses 639.25 36.16 243.55 918.96
Prepaid rent amortisation 167.00 167.00
Disposals for the year (55.15) (55.15)
At 31 March 2022 1,756.87 80.36 629.11 2,466.34
Net book value

At 31 March 2022 5,813.39 105.93 74.18 5,993.50
At 31 March 2021 5,304.60 26.51 317.73 5,648.84

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the period:

Lease Liability

Particulars March 31, 2022
Initial recognition as at 1 January 2020 3,117.94
Additions for the period -
Deletion for the period -
Accretion of interest 276.59
Payment of principal (1,242.04)
At 31 March 2021 2,152.49
Additions for the year 1,454.32
Deletion for the year (23.70)
Accretion of interest 168.28
Payment of principal (1,101.17)
At 31 March 2022 2,650.22
Current 616.32
Non-Current 2,033.90

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 39B.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is in the range of 5.54% to 8.88%, with maturity between 2022-43.

Particulars March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 918.96
Interest expense on lease liabilities 168.28
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 338.66

Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 1,425.90
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46. Capital work in progress includes an amount INR 19,035.40 Lakhs (previous year INR 6,004.21 Lakhs) towards setting up of Waste Heat
Recovery (WHR) Power Plant at its clinkerisation unit at Yeraguntla plant, Andhra Pradesh, adjacent to the Kilns to generate power from waste heat.
The same is being setup as a separate unit for generation of approximately 21 MW of power. The Company intends to utilize the energy generated by
WHR for captive consumption. The Company has placed orders for new equipments and the work for civil construction & equipment erection is in
progress. The plant is expected to be commissioned during financial year 2022-23.

During the period, the Company has capitalized the following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of fixed assets/Capital work in progress which
are incurred during construction period on substantial expansion of existing units/new projects/intangible assets of the Company. Consequently,
expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amount capitalised by the company

90

Particulars Opening Additions during | Capitalised Closing Balance

01.4.2021 the year during the as at 31.03.2022

Year

Salary, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 58.14 63.71 - 121.85
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 1.78 12.73 - 14.51
Stores and Spares Parts 17.97 32.45 - 50.42
Rent 12.59 33.75 - 46.34
Rates and Taxes - 49.10 - 49.10
Insurance 46.34 - - 46.34
Legal & Professional expenses (including Retainers fees) 114.90 163.93 - 278.83
Interest on loan (net of interest income) 76.42 958.11 - 1,034.53
Miscellaneous Expenses 88.47 94.39 - 182.86
Other expenses 5.50 21.46 - 26.96
Total 422.11 1,429.63 - 1,851.74

47. Standards notified but not yet effective
There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements.

48. Additional Statutory Information

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

(i) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with

the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

(viii) Ratio Analysis and its elements :-

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
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Financial Ratio

S. Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 % change Reason for variance
N

1 Current ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.56 0.74 -24.3% Ratio has improved on account of
increase in trade payables.

2 Debt- Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.17 0.31 -45.2% Ratio has improved favourably
mainly on account of repayment of
loan from internal accruals and
surplus.

3 Debt Service Coverage ratio Earnings before Interest on long term debt + 0.97 1.38 -29.7% Ratio has improved favourably

(in times) Depreciation, Finance cost Principal repayment within mainly on account of repayment of
and Tax next 12 months loan from internal accruals and
surplus.

4 Return on Equity ratio (%)  Net Profits after taxes — Average Shareholder’s 4.8% 11.6% -6.8%

Preference Dividend Equity

5 Inventory Turnover ratio (in  Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 5.10 3.40 50.0% Inventory turnover days increased

days) due to lower sales.

6 Trade Receivable Turnover  Revenue from operation ~ Average Trade Receivable 12.13 10.74 12.9%

Ratio (in days) (incl. GST)
7 Trade Payable Turnover Total Operating Cost (incl. Average Trade Payables 57.00 41.50 37.3% It has increased due to increase in
Ratio (in days) GST) average trade payable by 41%.
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio  Net sales = Total sales - Working capital = Current (4.63) (11.74) -60.6% Ratio has improved due to decrease
(in times) sales return assets — Current liabilities in working capital on account of
higher payables.
9 Net Profit ratio (%) Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - 3.7% 7.7% -4.0%
sales return
10 Return on Capital Employed Earnings before interest Capital Employed = 5.6% 12.8% -1.2%
(%) and taxes Tangible Net Worth + Total
Debt + Deferred Tax
T iakiliee,
11 Return on Investment (%) Interest (Finance Income) Investment 5.3% 7.0% -1.7%

49 Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, provides that every

Company having a paid-up share capital of INR 100 million or more, shall mandatorily appoint a whole time Company Secretary. Mr. Shrinivas
Harapanahalli, Company Secretary of the Company resigned from the post of Company Secretary of the Company on 04 March 2022 and was relieved w.e.f.
close of business hours on 04 April 2022. The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation of
Mr. Shrinivas Harapanahalli.
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50. Previous year figures

The financial statements as at and for the period ended March 31, 2021 were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants and previous period figures have
been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited

Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev K Saxena Jamshed Naval Cooper Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 01527371 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022 Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Members of Zuari Cement Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Zuari Cement Limited ("the
Holding Company®) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiaty together referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policies (“the
consolidated financial statements™). ) '

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted
in Indla, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of consolidated profit,
consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,-
and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibllities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Finandial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the board report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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Other Matter

The comparative consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 15 months ended 31 March
2021 induded in these consolidated financial statements, were audited by predecessor auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on 22 July 2021.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act, that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance Including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of apprapriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the acoounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do-so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolldated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from
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error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intemal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our condusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
inctuding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
undertying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financlal
statements of such entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficlencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, to the extent applicable, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.
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{c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Group as on 31 March
2022 taken on record by the respective Board of Directors of the Graup, none of the directors of the
Group companies, is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Group incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure A",

(9) There are no transactions on which provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are
applicable to the Holding company and subsidiary company for the year ended 31 March 2022,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group— Refer Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements,

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India.

iv. {a)The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us that, to the best of thelr knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company
or subsidiary to or in any other person or entity, including forelgn entities ("Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or subsidiary ("Ultimate Benefidiaries™ or
provide any guarantee, security or the llke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b). The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
have represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been recelved by the Holding Company or subsidiary
from any person or entity, including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or subsidiary, shall, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identifled in any manner whatsoever by
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or on behaif of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c). Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above
contain any material misstatement.

(v) The dividend paid by the Group, during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act.
Further, there is no dividend dedared during the year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to
be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and
based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiary included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there
are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports,

For S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.; 000050N/N500045

Rajeev Kumar Saxena

Partner

Membership No.: 077974

UDIN No.: 22077974ANEONES672

Place: Gurugram
Date: 18 July 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Zuari
Cement Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022

Independent Auditor's report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and for
the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of Zuari Cement Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™)
and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) which
are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls
based on the Intemmal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Indla (" the ICAI"). These responsibilities include the -design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the intemal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal finandal controls, both issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to finandial statements were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
incduded obtaining an understanding of intesnal financlal controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial ‘statements includes
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those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, Including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on intemal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0000S0N/N500045

Rajeev Kumar Saxena

Partner

Membership No.: 077974

UDIN No.: 22077974ANEONES672

Place: Gurugram
Date: 18 July 2022



Zuari Cement Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

Particulars

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right-of-use-asset
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Financial assets
Investments
Other financial assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
3 160,870.27 166,941.55
3 67,245.81 51,200.14

45 5,993.50 5,655.59
4 4,216.28 4,216.28
4 278.65 335.82
5 23.62 21.70
6 8,238.19 7,872.03
7 13,026.77 13,181.44
259,893.09 249,424.55
8 33,200.54 15,236.26
9 9,450.99 7,806.86
10 479.01 27,303.74
10 217.38 208.43
6 513.67 527.69
7 11,832.99 4,663.08
55,694.58 55,746.06
315,587.67 305,170.61
11 27,496.14 27,496.14
12
130,621.34 128,698.74
24,108.04 24,816.46
182,225.52 181,011.34
13 5,095.24 21,304.09
45 2,033.90 1,165.13
14 146.16 162.10
15 8,359.17 8,099.24
16 16,756.87 17,488.27
17 553.21 586.24
32,944.55 48,805.07
13 22,260.89 26,613.37
45 616.32 995.07
18
384.72 137.52
51,431.29 26,186.36
19 16,621.01 14,407.21
15 537.13 475.13
20 8,566.24 6,539.54
100,417.60 75,354.20
133,362.15 124,159.27
315,587.67 305,170.61
2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Rajeev K Saxena
Partner
Membership No. 077974

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Cement Limited
CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Jamshed Naval Cooper
Managing Director
DIN: 01527371

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer

Vimal Kumar Jain
Director
DIN: 09561918
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Zuari Cement Limited
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

101

Particulars

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (I)

Expenses
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed

Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses
Total Expense (II)

Profit before tax (I) - (II)
Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax charge/(credit)
Total tax expense
Profit after tax for the year/ period
Profit/(Loss) attributable to non controlling interest (NCI)
Profit attributable to owners of the parent (I1I)

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement losses of net defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

Other comprehensive losses for the year/period, net of tax (IV)

Total comprehensive income for the year/period, net of tax (III) + (IV)
Earnings per share [nominal value of share INR 10 (March 31, 2021: INR 10)]
Basic

Diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes For the year ended For the 15 months
March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
21 205,280.95 230,683.18
22 1,306.03 2,437.49
206,586.98 233,120.67
23 33,060.65 36,075.30
24 (5,183.43) 1,803.88
25 8,611.49 10,433.75
26 3,086.80 6,791.03
27 12,053.57 15,202.62
28 147,573.08 142,548.23
199,202.16 212,854.81
7,384.82 20,265.86
1,444.49 5,150.06
(745.97) (682.56)
16 698.52 4,467.50
6,686.30 15,798.36
(708.42) (1,280.90)
7,394.72 17,079.26
41.68 (52.18)
(14.57) 18.23
27.11 (33.95)
7,421.83 17,045.31
29
2.69 6.21
2.69 6.21
2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Rajeev K Saxena
Partner
Membership No. 077974

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Cement Limited
CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Vimal Kumar Jain
Director
DIN: 09561918

Jamshed Naval Cooper
Managing Director
DIN: 01527371

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer



Zuari Cement Limited

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)
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a. Equity Share Capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At January 1, 2020
Increase/(decrease) during the period
At March 31, 2021
Increase/(decrease) during the year
At March 31, 2022

b. Other equity:
For the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars

At April 1, 2021

Profit for the year

Dividend on equity and tax thereon (Note 12)
Other comprehensive loss (Note 12)

At March 31, 2022

For the year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars

At January 1, 2020

Profit for the period

Dividend on equity and tax thereon (Note 12)
Other comprehensive loss (Note 12)

At March 31, 2021

Summary of significant accounting policies

Number Amount
274,961,400 27,496.14
274,961,400 27,496.14
274,961,400 27,496.14
Attributable to the equity holders Attributable
Securities premium Retained earnings Items of OCI to NCI Total
account
37,201.93 91,580.86 (84.05) 24,816.46 153,515.20
- 7,394.72 - (708.42) 6,686.30
- (5,499.23) - - (5,499.23)
- - 27.11 - 27.11
37,201.93 93,476.35 (56.94) 24,108.04 154,729.38
Attributable to the equity holders Attributable
Securities premium Retained earnings Items of OCI to NCI Total
account
37,201.93 81,375.64 (50.10) 26,097.36 144,624.83
- 17,079.26 - (1,280.90) 15,798.36
- (6,874.04) - - (6,874.04)
- - (33.95) - (33.95)
37,201.93 91,580.86 (84.05) 24,816.46 153,515.20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Rajeev K Saxena
Partner
Membership No. 077974

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuari Cement Limited

CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Jamshed Naval Cooper
Managing Director
DIN: 01527371

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer

Vimal Kumar Jain
Director
DIN: 09561918




Zuari Cement Limited

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS) For the year ended For the 15 months
March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 7,384.82 20,265.86
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 12,053.57 15,202.62
Interest income (457.67) (1,408.76)
Interest expense 3,000.39 6,724.33
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment net 14.33 199.36
Provision for bad and doubtful debts, net - 44.16
Sundry balances written off 4.51 31.32
Unrealised foreign exchange differences (gain)/loss 220.15 0.03
Provision no longer required written back (687.26) (801.23)
Operating profit before working capital changes 21,532.84 40,257.69
Movements in working capital:
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 25,943.30 (1,820.67)
Increase / (decrease) in long-term provisions 301.61 812.07
Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions 62.00 (29.52)
Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities (33.03) (41.28)
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities 2,732.14 655.44
Increase / (decrease) in other short term liabilities 2,026.70 (1,497.34)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (1,644.13) 1,477.33
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (17,964.28) (1,169.54)
Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans - 3,054.97
Decrease / (increase) in short-term loan - 396.47
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets (366.16) (4,010.63)
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets (200.07) (812.00)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (7,174.42) (1,086.71)
Cash generated from operations 25,216.50 36,186.28
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (2,076.93) (4,660.84)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 23,139.57 31,525.44
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress and capital advances (20,006.12) (8,865.77)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment - 0.06
Redemption/ maturity of bank deposits - 769.60
Purchase of Investment (10.87) (208.43)
Interest received 471.69 1,070.98
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (19,545.30) (7,233.56)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 5,280.12 15,000.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (26,613.96) (29,157.70)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (refer note 45) (1,109.12) (1,253.66)
Dividend and Tax Paid thereon (5,499.23) (6,874.04)
Interest paid (2,476.81) (7,260.69)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (30,419.00) (29,546.09)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (26,824.73) (5,254.21)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 27,303.74 32,557.95
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 479.01 27,303.74
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Zuari Cement Limited

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

For the year ended

For the 15 months

March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - 0.14
Cheque in hand 265.40 212.43
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 213.61 778.17
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 26,313.00
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 10) 479.01 27,303.74

Explanatory notes to statement of cash flows

1. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: Liability arising from financing activities
Lease Liabilities (refer | Non-Current Borrowing
note 45) (including current
maturities)
As at 1 April 2021 2,160.20 47,917.46
Additions 1,454.32 5,280.12
Deletion for the year (23.69) -
Accretion of interest 168.51 772.51
Payments (1,109.12) (26,613.96)
At 31 March 2022 2,650.22 27,356.13
As at 1 January 2020 3,135.98 61,042.03
Additions - 15,000.00
Accretion of interest 277.88 1,033.13
Payments (1,253.66) (29,157.70)
At 31 March 2021 2,160.20 47,917.46

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Rajeev K Saxena
Partner
Membership No. 077974

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Cement Limited
CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Jamshed Naval Cooper
Managing Director
DIN: 01527371

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer

Vimal Kumar Jain
Director
DIN: 09561918
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1. Corporate Information

Zuari Cement Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ZCL” or “the Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “the Group”) are engaged in the manufacturing of Portland cement, generation and sale
of electricity. The Company was a joint venture between Zuari Global Limited (‘ZGL’) and Ciments Frangais
S.A. (‘CF’, part of the Italcementi Group) up to May 31, 2006. Pursuant to CF’s acquisition of 50% stake held by
ZGL, the Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of CF (‘the Holding Company”), effective May 31, 2006.
The Ultimate Holding Company upto June 30, 2016 was Italcementi S.p.A (‘the Ultimate Holding Company”).

HeidelbergCement AG has completed the acquisition of Italcementi S.p.A from Italmobiliare and become the
ultimate holding Company w.e.f. July 1, 2016.

1.1. Investment in subsidiaries

Following table indicates the list of subsidiaries, country of incorporation and proportion of shareholding:

Name of the entities Country of Percentage of ownership interest
incorporation
Subsidiaries March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Gulbarga Cement Limited (GCL)* | India 21.45% 21.45%

*The Company controls the composition of the Board of Directors of this subsidiary. The Company vide a letter
dated March 23, 2015 received from Ciments Francais S.A. and as per the Article of Association has right to
appoint all Directors on the Board of the Company. Hence on account of control over composition of the Board,
the Company is the holding company of Gulbarga Cement Limited under Section 2(87) of the Companies Act
2013 and Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110 - "Consolidated financial statements”.

The Consolidated financial statements were authorized by the Board of Directors for issue in accordance with
resolution passed on July 18, 2022.

2. Significant accounting policies

The Significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparation of its consolidated financial statements
are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements unless otherwise indicated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

During the previous year, the Company has changed its financial year from January 1 - December 31 to April 1-
March 31. Accordingly, the financial statements for the current period have been prepared for 15 months i.e.
from January 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021.

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except certain items which
need to be stated at fair value as per Ind AS. The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Rupees
Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.
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2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at

December 31, 2019. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption

and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all

relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

¢ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

e The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
Statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on December 31. When the end of the reporting period of the
parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional
financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to
consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate
an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes
applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

(a) Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

(b) Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

(c) Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

(d) Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

(e) Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

(F) Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

(9) Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in
a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

(a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

(b) Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

(c) Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

(d) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the
related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
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loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and
all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in
equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

Business combination of entities under common control

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the ompany or ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory, are accounted
for using the pooling of interests method as follows:

The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are only
made to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business
combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of
the actual date of the combination, however, where the business combination had occurred after that date, the
prior period information is restated only from that date.

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with
the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against general
reserve.
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The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee.
The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in
the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to goodwill in
accordance with Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group (ITFG) clarification Bulletin 9.

As provided in the Scheme, the assets and liabilities including reserves of Transferor Companies as on the
Appointed Date were recorded by the Company at their existing carrying values and the amalgamation was
accounted for in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard ( Ind AS) 103, 'Business Combinations of entities
under Common Control - Appendix C' under Pooling of Interest method for the year 2019 as notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per ITFG-9.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

e  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the parent company’s
functional currency.

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
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currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair Value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer
for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.
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Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of the Company’s core products Cement is recognized when delivery has taken place and
control of the goods has been transferred to the customer, and when there are no longer any unfulfilled
obligations.

The customer obtains control of the goods when the significant risks and rewards of products sold are transferred
to the customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to and accepted by the customer, according to the
specific delivery terms that have been agreed with the customer.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any discounts,
price concessions, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods
and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the provision for such discounts, price
concessions and rebates. Revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal
will not occur.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with credit terms largely ranging between 30
days and 60 days depending on the specific terms agreed to with the customer concerned, which is consistent with
market practice.

Contract Balances

Trade receivables
A trade receivable is recognized when the products are delivered to a customer as this is the point in time that the
consideration becomes unconditional because only a passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Contract assets, which is a company’s right to consideration that is conditional on something other than the
passage of time. Currently there are no contract assets.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities, which is a company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
entity has already received consideration, relate mainly to advance payments from customers which are
disclosed in Note no.20. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the company performs under the
contract.

Rendering of services Income from services rendered is recognized based on agreements/arrangements with the
customers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

g. Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the asset separately, if the component/part
has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that
of the remaining asset. These identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the asset as follows:

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Buildings 10-60

Plant and machinery 2-50

Railway sidings 15

Furniture and fittings 1.5-10

Motor vehicles 8-10

Office equipment 3-25

Computer hardware 3-6
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Further, the management has estimated the useful lives of asset individually costing INR 5,000 or less to be less
than one year, which is lower than those indicated in schedule Il. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the asset are likely to be used.

Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in proportion of actual
quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable mineral reserves. Freehold non mining land
is not depreciated.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Cost of assets not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Costs incurred on acquisition of intangible assets are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over useful
lives, as mentioned below:

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Computer Software 5

Mining license is amortized over the period of lease.
Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.



114

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts
and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the
underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments
or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable
interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value
and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the
proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial
liabilities.

Government grants in the nature of Sale tax incentive are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Inventories

Raw materials, packing materials, coal and fuel, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.
Cost of raw materials, packing materials, coal and fuel, stores and spares is determined on a weighted average
basis and includes cost incurred in bringing the material to its present location and condition. Stores and spares
which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of
finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets
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The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land 2 years

Building 4 months to 24 years
Furniture and Fixtures 1 year to 4 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (k) Impairment
of non-financial assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (refer note 45).
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of the past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provision for mine reclamation expenses
The Group provides for the estimated expenses to reclaim the quarries used for mining. The total estimate of
restoration expenses is apportioned over the estimate of mineral reserves and a provision is made based on the

minerals extracted during the year.

Site restoration expenses are incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the mine. The actual expenses
may vary based on the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenses.

Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. If the contribution payable to

the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
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already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment
or a cash refund.

Superannuation Fund (being administered by Trusts) and Employees’ State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) are
defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period
when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and

loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and

o Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group treats accumulated leave
expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes.
Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and
are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not
have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
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Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to
P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch”). The Group has not designated
any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on
sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a.  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

» Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

> Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

» Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as
a liability. Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the expected credit
losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount
equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other
comprehensive income as the ‘accumulated impairment amount”

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 13.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management. Deposits with initial maturity greater than 3 months are considered as cash and cash equivalents if
the deposits can be converted to cash without significant penalty on principle.

Segment reporting
The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of cement and hence entire operation represents a single

primary segment. The Group operates within India only and hence geographical segment is not applicable to the
Group.
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Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the Consolidated financial statements.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the
corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding
amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net
profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Cost or valuation

At January 1, 2020
Additions for the period
Disposals

At March 31, 2021
Additions

Disposals

At March 31, 2022

Depreciation

At January 1, 2020
Charge for the period
Disposals

At March 31, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

At March 31, 2022

Net Block
At March 31, 2021
At March 31, 2022

Freelfol.d Fre.el.lold — Plant and Railway Furniture . Office Computer Capital work in
non-mining mining Buildings . . . Motor vehicles . Total
machinery sidings## and fittings equipment hardware progress®#*
land** land#

7,333.49 6,773.25 58,335.87 131,796.73 23,654.59 664.87 361.83 442.89 492.11 229,855.63 19,199.04
74.46 - 101.55 1,180.99 - 0.75 51.86 162.95 - 1,572.56 33,573.66
- - - (323.56) (0.01) (12.54) (1.08) (4.33) (12.86) (354.38) (1,572.56)
7,407.95 6,773.25 58,437.42 132,654.16 23,654.58 653.08 412.61 601.51 479.25 231,073.81 51,200.14
140.92 - 550.35 4,260.81 - 15.17 - 36.47 - 5,003.72 21,391.92
- - - (16.93) - (7.38) - (9.54) (18.06) (51.91) (5,346.25)
7,548.87 6,773.25 58,987.77 136.898.04 23,654.58 660.87 412.61 628.44 461.19 236,025.62 67,245.81

- 236.27 9,511.12 33,012.94 6,392.46 443.40 240.39 210.64 368.15 50,415.37 -

- 32.94 2,932.54 8,492.18 2,150.14 64.98 44.66 93.46 60.96 13,871.86 -

- - - (128.99) (0.01) (10.23) (0.85) (3.89) (11.00) (154.97) -

- 269.21 12,443.66 41,376.13 8,542.59 498.15 284.20 300.21 418.11 64,132.26 -

- 23.75 2,253.11 6,878.82 1,720.11 42.56 25.96 87.91 28.45 11,060.67 -

- - - (6.75) - (6.81) - (7.52) (16.50) (37.58) -

- 292.96 14,696.77 48,248.20 10,262.70 533.90 310.16 380.60 430.06 75,155.35 -
7,407.95 6,504.04 45,993.76 91,278.03 15,111.99 154.93 128.41 301.30 61.14 166,941.55 51,200.14
7,548.87 6,480.29 44,291.00 88,649.84 13,391.88 126.97 102.45 247.84 31.13 160.870.27 67,245.81

** Awarded Land admeasuring 5.56 acres amounting INR 2.50 lakhs (March 31, 2021: 1284.31 acres of INR 516.21 lakhs) situated at Yerraguntala of which conveyance documents have been submitted to the Registering Authority for
registration. Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement between Zuari Global Limited (formerly “Zuari Industries Limited””) and the Company, sanctioned by the Honourable High Court of Bombay on January 12, 2001, the cement undertaking of
Zuari Global Limited stood vested in the Company with effect from April 1, 2000. The Company is taking necessary steps for securing the title deeds in respect of land at Yerraguntala in its name.

# Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land has been depreciated in proportion of actual quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of mineral reserve.

## The Company has leased out railway sidings under non-cancellable lease. Refer note 32(b)(i).

**% Capital work-in-progress includes amount paid for the purchase of land at Chennai of INR 671.43 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR 671.43 Lakhs). The Government of Tamil Nadu has issued fresh GO (MS ) No. 201 dated 10/05/2022
superseding order no. 5349/LD3(1)/2011-27 dated 04/01/2018. The Company has filed application with the Government of Tamil Nadu as per the requirements of new order No. 201 dated 10/05/2022 , wherein, the Company would obtain
the ownership of the existing leasehold land at Chennai, by surrendering the aforesaid land purchased. The Company has obtained the title deeds for the aforesaid land purchased. However, process for swapping the land with the Government
authorities is still under progress. The Company has availed the exemption of short term leases for classification this lease under Ind AS 116.
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4. Intangible assets

Cost or valuation

At January 1, 2020
Additions for the period
Disposals

At March 31, 2021
Additions for the year
Disposals

At March 31, 2022

Amortisation/ Impairment
At January 1, 2020

Charge for the period
Disposals

At March 31, 2021

Charge for the year
Disposals

At March 31, 2022

Net Block
At March 31, 2021
At March 31, 2022

124

Goodwill* Computer Mining Total Capital
software license** work in
progress
4,216.28 634.89 608.68 5,459.85 -
- (1.22) - (1.22) -
4,216.28 633.67 608.68 5,458.63 -
- 10.00 - 10.00 10.00
- (126.36) - (126.36) (10.00)
4,216.28 517.31 608.68 5,342.27 -
- 583.18 231.88 815.06 -
- 23.32 69.37 92.69 -
- (1.22) - (1.22) -
- 605.28 301.25 906.53 -
- 18.48 48.69 67.17 -
- (126.36) - (126.36) -
- 497.40 349.94 847.34 -
4,216.28 28.39 307.43 4,552.10 -
4,216.28 19.91 258.74 4,494.93 -

* Consequent to the merger of Sitapuram Power Limited (SPL) with the Company in the previous year, the assets, liabilities and reserves
pertaining to SPL, as appearing in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, immediately before the merger, are recognized at
their carrying values. Accordingly, Goodwill of INR 2,300 Lakhs appearing in the consolidated financial statement of the Company is

recognized at it’s carrying value.

** The Company had purchased mining license from Chambal Fertilisers and Chemicals Limited and the same is valid till 4 October 2027.
Hence, the Company is depreciating the same over the period of license.

Capital work in progress ("CWIP') Ageing Schedule

Rs. in Lakhs
Amount of CWIP for a period of
Projects in progress Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
As at 31 March 2022 5,405.82 17,235.35 27,117.48 17,487.16 67,245.81
As at 31 March 2021 6,636.45 26,666.60 10.01 17,887.08 51,200.14

Project execution plans are modulated as per requirement on annual basis and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.
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5. Non-current investments

Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid)

U ted equity instr

A. 22,460 (March 31, 2021: 22,460) equity shares of INR. 10/- each fully paid up of Vena Energy Power
Resources Private Limited [refer note (i)]

B. 64,182 (March 31, 2021: 44,962) equity shares of INR. 10/- each fully paid up of Echanda Urja Private
Limited. [refer note (ii)]

Unquoted preference shares
A. 14,419 (March 31, 2021: 14,419) Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Non-Participative Preference shares
of INR. 100/- each fully paid up in Vena Energy Power Resources Private Limited [refer note (i)]

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
232 232
6.42 4.50
8.74 6.82
14.88 14.88
14.88 14.88
23.62 21.70

(i). Investments in Vena Energy Power Resources Private Limited (formerly known as Energon Power Resources Private Limited)

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company, had executed a Share Subscription and Shareholders Agreement (SSHA) dated June 2, 2014 with Energon Power
Resources Private Limited (‘EPRPL”) and Energon Renewables Private Limited. Pursuant to the terms of SSHA, the Company has invested a sum of INR 2.32 Lakhs to
acquire 2.89% equity stake and INR 14.88 Lakhs to acquire 2.89% cumulative compulsorily convertible non-participative preference shares in ERPL in the year 2014. This

will provide an entitlement of 6 MW dedicated wind energy capacity in EPRPL for the Company.

(ii). Investment in Echanda Urja Private Limited

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company, had executed a Shareholders Agreement (SHA) dated April 26, 2016 with Echanda Urja Private Limited (“EUPL”)
and NuPower Renewables Private Limited for the procurement of wind energy upto 10 MKWh. The Company made a further investment of INR 1.10 lakhs during the year

ended March 31, 2018 and INR 1.92 lakhs during the current year in EUPL for the supply of wind energy upto 18.4 MKWh.

6. Other financial assets

Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - - 34.71
Interest accrued on other deposits - - 91.71 86.67
Security deposit (unsecured, considered good) 3,021.82 3,001.88 421.96 406.31
VAT/GST Incentive receivables
- Considered good 5,216.37 4,870.15 - -
- Doubtful - 392.60 - -
8,238.19 8,264.63 513.67 527.69
Allowances for doubtful receivables - (392.60) - -
8,238.19 7.872.03 513.67 527.69
7. Other assets Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good 1,070.30 2,224.47 - -
1,070.30 2,224.47 - -
Other- unsecured, considered good
Advance income tax, net of provision for tax 1,759.17 1,126.73 - -
Balance with government authorities 1,111.58 980.06 3,531.09 1,399.32
Amount paid under protest 8,423.44 8,193.43 - -
Employee advances - - 33.81 2593
Advance to suppliers - -
- Considered good - - 6,734.43 2,306.78
- Doubtful - - 118.85 118.85
Prepaid expenses 273.63 268.10 1,531.51 928.90
Other receivables 717.98 717.98 2.15 2.15
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable (329.33) (329.33) - -
11,956.47 10,956.97 11,951.84 4,781.93
Allowances for doubtful advance and deposits (118.85) (118.85)

13.026.77 13,181.44

11,832.99 4,663.08
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for the year ended March 31, 2022

8. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Raw materials (includes in transit INR 11.37 lakhs) (March, 2021: INR 18.16 lakhs)

Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Consumable stores and spares (includes in transit INR 190.53 lakhs) (March 31, 2021: INR 206.12 lakhs)

9. Trade receivables

Trade receivables

Receivables from other related parties*

Break-up for trade receivable:
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Trade receivables - credit impaired

Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired

As at 31 March 2021

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired

March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
2,306.15 1,804.56
5,252.24 1,517.42
2,666.51 1,217.90
22,975.64 10,696.38
33,200.54 15,236.26
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
9,328.77 7,401.27
122.22 405.59
9,450.99 7,806.86
5,115.53 3,302.52
4,335.46 4,504.34
542.46 607.02
9,993.45 8,413.88
(542.46) (607.02)
9,450.99 7,806.86
Rs. in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Current but Less than 6 6 months - 1
- N More than 3 years
not due months year 1-2 years 2-3 years y Total
6,898.66 2,288.08 264.25 - - 9,450.99
- - 45.41 92.94 166.18 542.46
6,898.66 2,288.08 309.66 92.94 166.18 9,993.45
Rs. in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Current but -
" ut Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
not due months year
6,628.64 1,178.22 - - - 7,806.86
- 162.60 141.26 38.65 131.38 607.02
6,628.64 1,340.82 141.26 38.65 131.38 8,413.88

*Include dues from companies where directors are interested (refer note 31).

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand
Cheque in hand
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Total (A)
Other bank balances
Deposits as margin money against guarantees

Current

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

- 0.14
265.40 212.43
213.61 778.17

- 26,313.00
479.01 27,303.74
217.38 208.43
217.38 208.43
696.39 27,512.17

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits made for varying periods of upto 3 months, depending on the immediate cash
requirement of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand
Cheque in hand
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>

Current

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

- 0.14
265.40 212.43
213.61 778.17

- 26,313.00
479.01 27,303.74




127

Zuari Cement Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

11. Share capital Equity Shares Preference Shares

Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized share capital
At January 1, 2020 348,000,000 34,800.00 140,000,000 14,000.00
Increase/(decrease) during the period - - - -
At March 31, 2021 348,000,000 34,800.00 140,000,000 14,000.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - - -
At March 31, 2022 348,000,000 34,800.00 140,000,000 14,000.00

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued equity capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number Amount

At January 1, 2020 274,961,400 27,496.14
Increase/(decrease) during the period - -
At March 31, 2021 274,961,400 27,496.14
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At March 31, 2022 274,961,400 27,496.14

(a) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding Company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates is given below
Out of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ciments Frangais S.A, the Holding Company 266,461,350 266,461,350
Compagine Pour I'Investment Financier En Inde 8,500,000 8,500,000
Investcim S.A.S 10 10
Sax S.A.S 10 10
Cafipar S.A.S 10 10
Tercim S.A.S 10 10
Menaf S.A.S 10 10
(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
Name of the shareholder
Ciments Francais S.A, the Holding Company 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91%

In the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company has not issued any bonus shares or has bought back any shares.

The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment.

c. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2022 is as follows:

Promoter name As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 % Change during the
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares Year

Ciments Frangais S.A 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91% -

Total 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91% -

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Promoter name As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 % Change during the
No. of shares % of total shares  No. of shares % of total shares Year
Ciments Frangais S.A 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91% -

Total 266,461,350 96.91% 266,461,350 96.91% -
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12. Other equity

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A) Retained earnings
At the commencement of the year/period 91,580.86 81,375.64
Add: Profit for the year/period 7,394.72 17,079.26
Less: Appropriations

Dividend on equity shares (refer note 36) (5,499.23) (6,874.04)
Closing balance (A) 93,476.35 91,580.86
B) Remeasurement gain/ (losses) of net defined benefit plans, net of tax
At the commencement of the year/period (84.05) (50.10)
Additions during the year/period 27.11 (33.95)
Closing balance (B) (56.94) (84.05)
Securities premium account 37,201.93 37,201.93
Closing balance (C) 37,201.93 37,201.93
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (A+B+C) 130,621.34 128,698.74
Non Controlling Interest (D) 24,108.04 24,816.46
Total (A+B+C+D) 154,729.38 153,515.20

Nature and purpose of reserves:

a) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited
purposes in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013. No movement during the

year/period.

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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13. Borrowings
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

From related parties (unsecured)
-Rupee denominated bonds (“masala bond”) (refer note (i)) - - - 25,000.00
-Inter corporate loan (refer note (ii)) - 15,000.00 15,000.00 -

- 15,000.00 15,000.00 25,000.00

Other loans and advances
Loan repayable on demand (from bank)

-Bank overdraft (unsecured) (refer note (iii)) - - 5,280.12 -
Deferred payment liability
- Sales tax deferral loan (secured) (refer note (iv)) 5,095.24 6,304.09 1,980.77 1,613.37
5,095.24 6,304.09 7,260.89 1,613.37
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 5,095.24 6,304.09 1,980.77 1,613.37
Unsecured borrowings - 15,000.00 20,280.12 25,000.00
5,095.24 21,304.09 22,260.89 26,613.37

Details of repayment terms, interest and maturity

(i) Rupee denominated bonds (“masala bond”) issued to HeidelbergCement AG, with a total outstanding balance of INR 25,000 lakhs at the begining of the
year. The interest is payable semi-annually at the rate of 8.70% per annum. The Company has repaid final installment of INR 25,000 Lakhs on due date of 16
January 2022.

(ii) The Company has taken long term loan of INR 15,000 Lakhs which is repayable to Heidelberg Cement India Limited after expiry of 2 years from the date
of loan and carries an interest at 275 basic points (bps) over and above the prevailing yield rate on government securities of three years on the date of
disbursement of loan. The rate of interest so determined will remain fixed for 2 years and will be payable at quarterly intervals.

(iif) The Company has availed unsecured overdraft facilities from Bank, repayable on demand to meet short term working capital requirement.

(iv) To promote the industries in backward area (i.e. at Yerraguntla, Andhra Pradesh), Government of Andhra Pradesh, announced an interest free sales tax loan
facility. To avail the facility, the Company has entered into an agreement with the Government of Andhra Pradesh for deferring payment of sales tax collected
during the period February 15, 1999, to February 14, 2013 (fourteen (14) years). The deferred amount will be repaid by the year ended March 31, 2027. The
amount repayable within a period of one year from the reporting date, i.e. INR 1,980.77 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR 1,613.37 Lakhs) is included in current
maturities of long-term borrowings. It is secured by way of movable and immovable properties of the Company.

As per Ind AS 109, Sales Tax Deferment loan results into an interest-free loan from the government. Accordingly, the Company has retrospectively measured

the sales tax deferral loan as on transition date by arriving at the present value, which is the discounted amount of the loan computed using the market rate of
interest for a similar loan for the period for which the entity is not required to deposit the sales tax amount with the government.

Non-current

14. Other financial liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Payable 146.16 162.10
146.16 162.10

15. Provisions
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (note 33) 409.92 313.99 - -

Compensated absences - - 537.13 475.13
409.92 313.99 537.13 475.13

Others

Provision for litigation (refer note 32(d)) 6,857.87 6,693.87 - -

Provision for site restoration expense (refer note 32(e)) 1,091.38 1,091.38 - -

7,949.25 7,785.25 B N
8,359.17 8,099.24 537.13 475.13
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16. Income tax & deferred tax liability

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:

Statement of Profit or loss : March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 1,444 .49 5,150.06
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year - -
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (745.97) (682.56)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 698.52 4,467.50

Other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the period:

Net (gains)/losses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 14.57 (18.23)
Income tax charged to OCI 14.57 (18.23)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate for March 31, 2022 March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
and March 31, 2021:

Accounting profit before income tax 7,384.82 20,265.86

Total tax charge computed on the basis of the applicable rates 2,895.70 7,651.52

Deductible expenses for tax purposes (649.27) (594.39)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 21.80 142.09

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 105.29 136.28

Impact of change in tax rate [refer note below (i)] (1,675.00) (2,868.00)
At the effective income tax rate of 9.46% (March 31, 2021: 22.04%) 698.52 4,467.50

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 698.52 4,467.50

Company is entitled to avail exemption under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 from income tax on profits of business.

(i) 'The Government of India on 20 September, 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted a new Section 115BAA in the Income
Tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/conditions defined in the said section.
The Company is continuing to provide for income tax at the old rates, based on the available outstanding MAT credit entitlement and various exemptions and
deductions available to the Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, the Company has applied the lower income tax rates on the deferred tax assets
/ liabilities to the extent these are expected to be realised or settled in the future period when the Company may be subjected to lower tax rate and accordingly
reversed the net deferred tax liability INR 2,868.00 lakhs during the period ended 31 March 2021 and INR 1,675.00 lakhs during the year ended 31 March
2022.

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial 18,754.83 19,487.43
reporting

Gross deferred tax liability 18,754.83 19,487.43

Deferred tax asset

Unused tax credits (MAT credit entitlement) - (refer note (i) below) 515.56 646.84
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes on 847.98 612.73
payment basis

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 173.57 202.13
Provision for employee related liabilities 460.85 537.46
Gross deferred tax asset 1,997.96 1,999.16
Net deferred tax liability 16,756.87 17,488.27

(i) MAT credits are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of MAT credit to be
utilised during this specified period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.

The Company reviews MAT credit entitlement at each reporting date and in the current year the Company based on future profit and tax projections believes
that sufficient taxable profits will be generated to utilize the full MAT credit.

17. Other non-current liabilities
March 31,2022  March 31,2021

Income received in advance 553.21 586.24
553.21 586.24
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18. Trade payables

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 41)
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Trade Payables
- To related parties (refer note 31)
- To others

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

As at 31 March 2021

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

19. Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note 31)
Interest accrued but not due on deposits

Trade and other deposits

Payable against purchase of property, plant and equipment

Derivative liability

20. Other liabilities

Contract liabilities
Advance from customers

Income received in advance

Statutory liabilities

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
384.72 137.52
51,431.29 26,186.36
51,816.01 26,323.88
18,928.82 1,028.18
32,887.19 25,295.70
51,816.01 26,323.88
Rs in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
384.72 - - - 384.72
48,952.25 897.96 883.46 697.62 51,431.29
49,336.97 897.96 883.46 697.62 51,816.01
Rs in Lakhs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
137.52 - - - 137.52
23,007.85 1,884.23 702.34 591.94 26,186.36
23,145.37 1,884.23 702.34 591.94 26,323.88
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- 416.88
- 0.56
14,408.60 11,877.00
1,999.25 2,100.15
213.16 12.62
16,621.01 14,407.21
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
3,318.62 2,604.25
33.03 33.03
5,214.59 3,902.26
8,566.24 6,539.54
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21. Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Cement
Clinker
Others

Sales of Services

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales
Revenue from disposal of hazardous waste
Government grant- SGST incentive (refer note 34)

21.1 Disaggregated Revenue Information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contract with
customers:

India

Outside India

Total Revenue from contract with customers

21.2 Contract Balances
Trade receivables (refer Note 10)
Contract liabilities (refer Note 20)

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days.

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2021

189,484.68 217,755.64
13,083.02 9,482.52
- 4.79
202,567.70 227,242.95
32.38 40.16
520.70 452.09
159.57 344.67
2,000.60 2,603.31
2,680.87 3,400.07
205,280.95 230,683.18

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2021

205,248.57 230,643.02
32.38 40.16
205,280.95 230,683.18
9,450.99 7,806.86
3,318.62 2,604.25

21.3 The performance obligation is satisfied upon supply of goods as and when delivered and accordingly, there is no outstanding performance

obligation as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

21.4 Sales of product is net of INR 28,403.84 Lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 15,808.57 Lakhs) on account of cash discount, rebates and incentives

given to customers.

22. Other income

Interest income
On bank deposits
Others
Provision no longer required written back
Rental income
Miscellaneous income

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2021

359.97 1,043.99
97.70 364.77
687.26 801.23
45.93 57.41
115.17 170.09
1,306.03 2,437.49




Zuari Cement Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

133

23. Cost of raw material and packing material consumed

Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year/period
Add: Purchases during the year/period
Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year/period

24. Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Opening stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Less: closing stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

25. Employee benefits expense*

Salaries, wages and bonus

Gratuity expense (refer note 33)

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

26. Finance costs*

Interest expense
On term loans and cash credit from banks
On long term borrowings from related party (refer note 31)
On lease liabilities
On others#
Bank charges

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,804.56 1,192.54
33,562.24 36,687.32
2,306.15 1,804.56
33,060.65 36,075.30

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,217.90 1,447.45
1,517.42 3,091.75
2,735.32 4,539.20
2,666.51 1,217.90
5,252.24 1,517.42
7,918.75 2,735.32

(5,183.43) 1,803.88

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
7,795.64 9,503.70
151.19 194.07
452.51 551.20
212.15 184.78
8,611.49 10,433.75

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2021

28.05 73.94
1,734.04 4,981.64
168.51 277.88
1,069.79 1,390.87
86.41 66.70
3,086.80 6,791.03

(# Interest on others for the year ended March 31, 2022 include INR 772.51 lakhs (March 31 2021: INR 1,033.13 Lakhs) represents interest

expenses on sales tax deferral loan as per Ind AS 109)

*Directly attributable expenses in relation to project under construction have been transferred to capital work in progress. (refer note 46)
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27. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation on Right-of-use-asset (refer note 45)

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)

28. Other expenses*

Power and fuel
Freight outward

Consumption of stores, loose tools and spare parts

Rent

Rates and taxes

Legal and professional

Payment to auditor [Refer note (i) below]
Repairs and maintenance:

- plant and machinery

- buildings

- others

License fee (refer note 31)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts, net
Sundry balances written off (gross)
Selling and distribution expenses

Sales commission

Advertisement and sales promotion
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 35)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Insurance

Traveling and conveyance

IT and business support charges
Communication

Foreign exchange loss, net
Miscellaneous expenses

(i) Payment to auditor

As statutory auditor (excluding goods and services tax)
Reimbursement of expenses (excluding goods and services tax)

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
11,060.67 13,871.86
925.72 1,238.07

67.18 92.69
12,053.57 15,202.62

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
75,681.74 62,367.16
39,850.26 45,269.16

6,549.60 8,048.03
338.66 234.57
5,875.94 6,454.73
618.81 597.34
58.17 38.09
4,634.82 4,794.15
285.90 150.06
222.34 272.25
2,340.16 2,765.42
. 44.16

4.51 31.32
2,953.56 3,292.04
1,190.45 1,310.95
831.44 689.78
301.31 389.99
14.33 199.36
997.52 856.44
499.11 679.60
1,187.08 1,557.09
86.28 125.14
543.90 354.35
2,507.19 2,027.05
147,573.08 142,548.23

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
58.00 38.00
0.17 0.09
58.17 38.09

*Directly attributable expenses in relation to project under construction have been transferred to capital work in progress. (refer note 46)

29. Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit after tax available to equity shareholders
Net profit for calculation of basic/Diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic/Diluted EPS (in lakhs)

Basic and diluted EPS (in INR)

For the year ended

For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6,686.30 15,798.36
6,686.30 15,798.36
2,749.61 2,749.61

2.43 5.75
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30. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, land access and other
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome
of future events.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company has based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant & equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The
useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over
the remaining useful life of the assets.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment defined benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 33.

(iii) Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Refer Note 37 of the financials.

(iv) Mines reclamation expenses:
In determining the fair value of the Mines Restoration Obligation, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected cost of
mines restoration and the expected timing of those costs.

(v) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the nature of business, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The
amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

(vi) Impairment of Financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(vii) Provision for inventories

Management reviews the aged inventory on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory item with the

respective net realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-

moving items. Management believes that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial statements.

(viii) Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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31. Related party disclosures

a. Names of related parties and related party relationship

Names of related parties where control exists irr

of whether tr ions have occurred or not:

Ultimate holding Company

Holding Company

HeidelbergCement AG

Ciments Francais S.A

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period/vear:

Entities under common control

HeidelbergCement India Limited ("HCIL")
HC Trading Malta

HC Trading India (P) Limited

Ciments Calcia SA

CTG SPA

HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd.

HC Asia Pte Ltd

Additional related parties as per the Companies Act, 2013:

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Key Management Personnel

b. Related party transactions

Mr. Vimal Kumar Choudhary

Mr. L. R. Neelakanta upto March 31, 2021

Mr. Shrinivas Harapanahalli w.e.f April 01, 2021 (till April 04, 2022)

Mr. Jamshed Naval Cooper, Managing Director
r. Kevin Gluskie, Non-Executive Director

r. Juan-Francisco Defalque, Non-Executive Director

r. Sushil Kumar Tiwari, Non-Executive Director (till June 09, 2022)
r. Vimal Kumar Jain, Non-Executive Director (w.e.f June 10, 2022)

Mt
M
Ms. Soek Peng Sim, Non-Executive Director
M
M

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered in to with related parties for the relevant periods:

i. Transactions during the year/period:
Name of related party

Nature of transaction

HC Trading Malta
HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd.

HeidelbergCement AG

HeidelbergCement India Limited

Ciments Calcia SA

CTG Sp.A.

HC Asia pte Ltd

HC Trading India (P) Limited

ii. Balance outstanding at the year end
Nature of transaction

Trade receivables

Trade payables

Interest accrued but not due

Loan payable

Loan payable

iii. Tr ions with key personnel*

Employee benefits
Total compensation paid to key management personnel

Purchase of Consumables (Petcoke)
Purchase of Consumables (Petcoke)

Masala bonds repaid

Interest expenses on Masala Bonds (refer note 26)
IT and other Business support charges

Licence fee (refer note 28)

Service income

Sale of Clinker

Purchase of materials

Loan taken from HCIL

Interest expenses on Loan

Retirement obligation for transferred employees
Business support charges

Liability written back

Liability written back

Recovery of expenses

Purchase of tangible assets
Name of related party
HeidelbergCement India Limited
HC Trading Malta

Ttalcementi S.p.A

HC Trading Asia and Pacific Pte Ltd.
HeidelbergCement India Limited
HeidelbergCement AG

HC Trading India (P) Limited
CTG Sp.A.

HeidelbergCement AG

HeidelbergCement AG

HeidelbergCement India Limited

# All the transactions are inclusive of tax and duty, wherever applicable.
*As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to the key management personnel are not

included above.

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

17.564.27

25,000.00
1,734.04
1,187.08
2,340.16

32.38

3,256.32

1,145.70

751.86

7.46

March 31, 2022
110.17
12.05

17,787.79
195.26
945.77

15,000.00

For the year ended

For the 15 months

ended March 31, 2021

4.325.14

25,000.00
4,981.64
1,557.09
2,765.42

40.16

3,918.49
169.38
15,000.00
77.55
52.68
823.78

17.79

2333

13.62

March 31, 2021

396.73
8.86

5.29
171.66
841.60

0.87

8.76
416.88

25,000.00

15,000.00

For the 15 months

March 31, 2022 ended March 31, 2021
162.25 314.13
162.25 314.13
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32. Commitments and Contingencies

a) Capital Commitments
i. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) INR 6,658.07 lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR
15,455.30 lakhs).

b) Other commitments (Leases)
i. Operating lease: Company as lessor

The Company has leased out railway sidings under non-cancellable lease. Total rental income under such leases during the year amounted to INR 12.89 lakhs
(March 31,2021: INR 16.11 lakhs). Future minimum lease payments expected to receive under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Not later than one year 12.89 12.89
Later than one year but not later than five years 51.57 51.57
Later than five years 164.37 177.26
¢) Contingent Liability
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sales Tax/Trade Tax/Entry Tax 8,934.82 8,934.82
Excise Duty/Service Tax/CENVAT Credit 5,751.89 6,585.90
Customs duty 942.07 942.07
Income tax matters 15,681.97 13,909.42
Electricity charges 1,407.29 2,152.08
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 4,018.84 4,799.88
36,736.88 37,324.17

During the period ended March 31, 2021, the Company has received a demand from The Southern Power Distribution Company of Telangana Limited
(TSSPDCL) aggregating INR 6,338 lakhs (including interest of INR 4,832 Lakhs) towards wheeling and transmission charges for FY 2002-03 to FY 2008-09.
The Company has challenged the said demand before the Hon’ble High Court of Telangana on the grounds, inter alia, that the charges are to be borne by the
power generators based on the contractual obligations with the electricity authorities. The Hon’ble High Court vide order dated August 17, 2020 granted interim
relief by suspending the above said demand. The Company has also obtained an opinion from external legal firm who has opined that Company would be able to
defend the demand on the above grounds.

The Company had executed agreements with power generators for the supply of power, which stipulates the cost per unit of power includes all charges etc.,
except with one supplier wherein the wheeling and transmission charges are to be borne by the company. Therefore, a provision was created in the books of
accounts for a sum of INR 766.64 lakhs towards the wheeling and transmission charges for the power drawn from that power generator.

d) Provision for litigations

Balance as at Additions during the Amounts Balance as at
Apr 1, 2021 year charged to reversed/utilised Mar 31, 2022
respective expenses during the year
head
Electricity duty and Charges 899.86 - - 899.86
(133.23) (766.63) - (899.86)
Sales tax matters 1,778.77 164.00 - 1,942.77
(1,925.34) - (146.57) (1,778.77)
Custom duty 1,377.89 - - 1,377.89
(1,377.89) - - (1,377.89)
Road Tax 94.86 - - 94.86
(94.86) - - (94.86)
Income tax matters 2,542.49 - - 2,542.49
(2,542.49) - - (2,542.49)
Total 6,693.87 164.00 - 6,857.87
(6,073.81) (766.63) (146.57) (6,693.87)

Note: Figures in brackets are for the previous year

Above provisions have been made against demands raised by various authorities. All these cases are under litigation and are pending with various authorities;
expected timing of resulting outflow of economic benefits cannot be specified. Amount deposited under protest against these provisions are shown under other
assets (refer note 8)
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€) Movement of provision for site restoration expenses during the period as required by Ind AS 37

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening provision (refer note 15) 1,091.38 1,091.38
Add: Provision made during the year/ period - -
Less: Provision utilised during the year/ period - -
Closing provision 1,091.38 1,091.38

Site restoration expense is incurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of mines. The actual expenses may vary based on the nature of restoration and the estimate of
restoration expenses.

33. Gratuity
The Company has two post-employment funded plans, namely Gratuity and Superannuation.

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (Act). Under the Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. Gratuity being administered by a Trust is computed as 15 days salary,
for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The Gratuity plan for the Company is a
defined benefit scheme where annual contributions as demanded by the insurer are deposited to a Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide gratuity benefits. The Trust
Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/liability in the books
of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the projected unit credit method.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for
the Gratuity:

Statement of profit and loss
(i) Net employee benefit expense (recognized in employee cost)
For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current service cost 142.77 177.31
Interest cost on benefit obligation 125.26 153.67
Expected return on plan assets (116.84) (136.91)
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss 151.19 194.07
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions (22.82) (15.55)
- changes in financial assumptions 9.61) 22.53
- change in experience adjustments (6.58) 29.35
- return on plan asset (excluding interest income) (2.68) 15.85
Amount recognised in OCI (41.68) 52.18

Balance Sheet

(ii) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability
The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components.

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation For the year ended For the 15 months ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,139.64 1,960.14
Current service cost 142.77 177.31
Interest cost on benefit obligation 125.26 153.67
Other significant events

- Increase/(decrease) due to effect of any business combinations/divestitures/transfers - 45.32
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions (22.82) (15.55)
- changes in financial assumptions 9.61) 22.53
- experience adjustments (6.58) 29.35
Benefit paid (317.39) (233.13)

Balance at the end of the year 2,051.27 2,139.64
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Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets

Particulars For the year ended  For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,825.65 1,884.91
Interest income 116.84 136.91
Contribution by employer 13.57 52.81
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income 2.68 (15.85)
Benefits paid (317.39) (233.13)
Balance at the end of the year 1,641.35 1,825.65

Details of provision for gratuity
For the year ended  For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation 2,051.27 2,139.64
Present value of plan assets 1,641.35 1,825.65
Net defined benefit liability/(assets) 409.92 313.99

(iii) Defined benefit obligation
- Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:
For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 6.50% 6.40%
Salary increase rate 7.50% 7.50%
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (IALM) (2006-  Mortality (IALM) (2006-

2008) (modified) Ult. 2008) (modified) Ult.
Withdrawl 8.00% 5.00%
Retirement age Up to DGM- 58 years Up to DGM- 58 years

GM and above 60 years GM and above 60 years
Note
The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market.

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.
- Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below:

Sensitivity level Impact on DBO
Gratuity Plan For the year ended For the 15 months For the year ended For the 15 months ended
March 31, 2022 ended March 31, March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2021
Assumptions
Discount rate -0.50% -0.50% 42.86 58.48
0.50% 0.50% (52.80) (55.47)
Salary increase rate -0.50% -0.50% (47.92) (50.43)
0.50% 0.50% 37.31 52.62

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

(iv) Plan assets
The principal plan assets consists of a scheme of insurance taken by the Trust, which is a qualifying insurance poliy. As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, 100% of the
plan assets were vested in investment with insurance company.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 319.16 355.05
Between 2 and 5 years 1,313.96 1,154.44
Beyond 5 years 1,226.18 1,318.46

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years (March 31, 2021: 6 years).

B. Superannuation Fund

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund (being administered by Trust) are funded defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable. The
contributions for the year ended March 31, 2022 is INR 82.19 lakhs and for the year ended March 31, 2021 is INR 87.67 lakhs.
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34. Sales tax incentive

The Company is entitled to benefits under Package Scheme of Incentives - 2007 as notified by Government of Maharashtra for the Manufacturing set up for cement
production facility at Solapur, Maharashtra w.e.f. September 1, 2015. Under the said policy, the Company is entitled for refund of Value Added Tax ( which is now
subsumed on GST) , exemption from electricity duty and waiver of stamp duty for a period of seven (7) years. Accordingly, for the period ended March 31, 2022, the
Company has recognised INR 2,000.60 lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR 2,603.31 lakhs) as income and disclosed under "Other operating revenue".

35. Corporate social responsibility (CSR):

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
Particulars

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

(b) Amount spent during the period ended March 31, 2022
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets

(i) On purposes other than (i) above

Total

(c) Amount spent during the year/ period ended March 31, 2021
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

Total

36. Dividend paid and proposed:

Dividend declared and paid during the year:

For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

280.60 261.48
In cash Yet to be paid Total
301.31 - 301.31
301.31 - 301.31
In cash Yet to be paid Total
389.99 - 389.99
389.99 - 389.99

Final dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2021: Rs 2.00 per share
Interim Dividend for the year ended on 31 December 2019: Rs 2.5 per share

Proposed Dividends on equity shares:

Proposed dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2022: Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. 2.00 per share )

For the year ended For the 15 months ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
5,499.23 -

- 6,874.04
5,499.23 -

- 5,499.23

- 5,499.23

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2022.

<< This space is intentionally left blank >>
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37. Fair Value
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair Value

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Investment 23.62 21.70 23.62 21.70
Loans and advances - - - -
Trade receivables 9,450.99 7,806.86 9,450.99 7,806.86
Cash and cash equivalents 479.01 27,303.74 479.01 27,303.74
Other financial assets 8,969.24 8,608.15 8,969.24 8,608.15
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 27,356.13 47917.46 27,356.13 47,917.46
Trade payables 51,816.01 26,323.88 51,816.01 26,323.88
Other financial liability 16,767.17 14,569.31 16,767.17 14,569.31
Lease liabilities 2,650.22 2,160.20 2,650.22 2,160.20

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, trade and other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

38. Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Assets measured at fair value: Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
Date of Valuation Total active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

FVTPL financial investments

Unquoted instruments March 31, 2022 23.62 - - 23.62
March 31,2021 21.70 - - 21.70

The fair value of unquoted instruments is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

39. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise of trade payables, other payables and borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include security deposits, receivables and cash and
cash equivalents which are part of the Company's operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk. The policies and procedures considered by Company’s senior management to oversee
the management of these risks has been summarised below.

A. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Company is
exposed to three types of market risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and and other price risk, such as commodity risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency). As on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has following foreign currency exposures:

Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure
a. Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Currency in foreign Amount in INR in foreign currency Amount in INR (in
currency (in lakhs) (in lakhs) lakhs)
(in lakhs)
Forward exchanged contracts (to hedge trade USD 304.03 23,457.53 44.71 3,296.26

payables)

304.03 23.457.53 44.71 3,296.26
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b. Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Currency in foreign Amount in INR in foreign currency Amount in INR (in
currency (in lakhs) (in lakhs) lakhs)
(in lakhs)
Trade payables EUR 0.11 9.39 0.05 4.39
UsD - - 0.29 21.50
9.39 25.89
Advance to supplier EUR 334 281.31 0.22 19.24
CHF 0.85 73.09 - -
354.40 19.24
Due to related parties EUR 0.10 8.02 0.51 43.56
UsD 0.16 12.28 0.12 8.86
20.30 52.42

*USD — US Dollar, EUR — Euro, CHF - Swiss Franc
Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact

on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

5% increase in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
EUR 13.11 (1.42)
USD (0.62) (1.50)
CHF 3.67 -

Note: If the rate is decreased by 500 bps, profit will increase by an equal amount for March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s policy is to maintain most of its borrowings at fixed rate. The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in
market interest rates.

Commodity price risk
The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities which is moderated by optimising the procurement under fuel supply agreement. Its
operating activities require the on-going purchase or continuous supply of coal. Therefore the Company monitors its purchases closely to optimise the price.

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations towards settlement of financial liabilities. Financial
liabilities are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and other similar credit facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

As at March 31, 2022 <1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings* 22,260.89 7,361.53 - 29,622.42
Trade payables** 51,816.01 - - 51,816.01
Other financial liabilities 16,621.01 146.16 - 16,767.17
Lease liabilities 616.32 2,033.90 - 2,650.22
As at March 31, 2021 <1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings* 26,613.37 22,475.10 1,867.20 50,955.67
Trade payables** 26,323.88 - - 26,323.88
Other financial liabilities 14,407.21 162.10 - 14,569.31
Lease liabilities 995.07 1,165.13 - 2,160.20

* Borrowings are shown without Ind AS adjustment.
** Trade payables are repayable on demand

C. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.
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Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed in line with the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed through internal evaluation which takes into account the financial parameters, past experience with the counterparty and
current economic/market trends. Individual credit limits are thus defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by advances, security deposits, bank guarantees etc. Trade receivables are
consisting of a large number of customers. The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer.

for the year ended March 31, 2022

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made with approved counterparties. Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions
is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions who have been assigned high credit rating by international and
domestic rating agencies.

40. Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Borrowings 27,356.13 47.917.46
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (479.01) (27,303.74)
Net debt 26,877.12 20,613.72
Equity attributable to equity share holder 182,225.52 181,011.34
Capital and debt 209,102.64 201,625.06
Gearing ratio 12.85% 10.22%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit
the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in
the current period.

41. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S.N Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at|
the end of each accounting year

-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises (Not overdue) 384.72 137.52
-Interest due on above - -

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. - -
) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for]|
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

42. Segment reporting

The Company is predominantly engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of cement, which constitutes a single business segment and is governed
by similar set of risks and returns. The operations of the Company primarily cater to the market in India, which the management views as a single segment.
The management monitors the operating results of its single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The Company is domiciled in India. The Company’s revenue from operations from external customers primarily relate to operations in India and all the non-
current assets of the Company are located in India.

43. Transfer pricing

The Company maintains the information and documents as required under the transfer pricing regulations under Section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act,
1961. The management is in the process of updating the transfer pricing documentation for the financial year 2020 - 2021 and is of the view that its
transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense
and that of provision for taxation.

44. The Company is taking all possible steps to mitigate the effect of COVID-19 on its business and operations to the extent possible and has considered all
possible effects from COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial results. The management has also evaluated the possible impact of the pandemic on the
business operations and based on its assessment of the current Indicators of the future economic conditions, it is expected that the carrying amount of assets
will be recovered.
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45 Leases
Effective 1 January, 2020, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 January 2020 using
the modified retrospective methods. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payment discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset equal to the lease liability adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit before
tax and earning per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease payment.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Right of Use of assets

Particulars Land & Buildings Furniture & Fixture Vehicles Total
Initial recognition as at 1 January 2020 6,317.13 70.71 714.57 7,102.41
Additions for the Period - - - -
Disposals - - - -

At 31 March 2021 6,317.13 70.71 714.57 7,102.41
Additions for the year 1,338.74 115.58 - 1,454.32
Disposals (78.85) - - (78.85)
At 31 March 2022 7,577.02 186.29 714.57 8,477.88

Depreciation/ Amortization
At 1 January 2020 - - - -

Depreciation Expenses 801.26 44.20 392.61 1,238.07
Prepaid rent amortisation 208.75 - - 208.75
Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2021 1,010.01 44.20 392.61 1,446.82
Depreciation Expenses 641.78 36.16 247.78 925.72
Prepaid rent amortisation 167.00 167.00
Disposals for the year (55.16) (55.16)
At 31 March 2022 1,763.63 80.36 640.39 2,484.38
Net book value

At 31 March 2022 5,813.39 105.93 74.18 5,993.50
At 31 March 2021 5,307.12 26.51 321.96 5,655.59

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the period:

Lease Liability

Particulars March 31, 2022
Initial recognition as at 1 January 2020 3,135.98
Additions for the period -
Deletion for the period -
Accretion of interest 277.88
Lease repayment (1,253.66)
At 31 March 2021 2,160.20
Additions for the year 1,454.32
Deletion for the year (23.69)
Accretion of interest 168.51
Lease repayment (1,109.12)
At 31 March 2022 2,650.22
Current 616.32
Non-Current 2,033.90

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 39B.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is in the range of 5.54% to 8.88%, with maturity between 2022-43.

Particulars March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 925.72
Interest expense on lease liabilities 168.51
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 338.66

Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 1,432.89




145

Zuari Cement Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Presented in INR Lakhs except share data and EPS)

46. Capital work in progress includes an amount INR 19,035.40 Lakhs (previous year INR 6,004.21 Lakhs) towards setting up of Waste Heat
Recovery (WHR) Power Plant at its clinkerisation unit at Yeraguntla plant, Andhra Pradesh, adjacent to the Kilns to generate power from waste heat.
The same is being setup as a separate unit for generation of approximately 21 MW of power. The Company intends to utilize the energy generated by
WHR for captive consumption. The Company has placed orders for new equipments and the work for civil construction & equipment erection is in
progress. The plant is expected to be commissioned during financial year 2022-23.

During the period, the Company has capitalized the following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of fixed assets/Capital work in progress which
are incurred during construction period on substantial expansion of existing units/new projects/intangible assets of the Company. Consequently,
expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amount capitalised by the company

Particulars Opening Additions during | Capitalised Closing Balance

01.4.2021 the year during the as at 31.03.2022

Year

Salary, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 58.14 63.71 - 121.85
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 1.78 12.73 - 14.51
Stores and Spares Parts 17.97 32.45 - 50.42
Rent 12.59 33.75 - 46.34
Rates and Taxes - 49.10 - 49.10
Insurance 46.34 - - 46.34
Legal & Professional expenses (including Retainers fees) 114.90 163.93 - 278.83
Interest on loan (net of interest income) 76.42 958.11 - 1,034.53
Miscellaneous Expenses 88.47 94.39 - 182.86
Other expenses 5.50 21.46 - 26.96
Total 422.11 1,429.63 - 1,851.74

47. Standards notified but not yet effective
There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements.

48. Additional Statutory Information

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with

the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

(viii) Ratio Analysis and its elements :-

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
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Notes to lidated fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2022
Fi ial Ratio
S. Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 % change Reason for variance
N
1 Current ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.55 0.74 -25.7% Ratio has improved on account of increase in trade
payables.
2 Debt- Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.15 0.26 -42.3% Ratio has improved favourably mainly on account of
repayment of loan from internal accruals and surplus.
3 Debt Service Coverage ratio (in times) Earnings before Interest on long term debt 0.94 1.33 -29.3% Ratio has improved favourably on account of
Depreciation, Finance cost ~ + Principal repayment repayment of loan from internal accruals and surplus.
and Tax within next 12 months
4 Return on Equity ratio (%) Net Profits after taxes — Average Shareholder’s 3.7% 9.7% -6.0%
Preference Dividend Equity
5 Inventory Turnover ratio (in days) Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 5.10 3.40 50.0% Inventory turnover days increased due to lower sales.
6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in days) Revenue from operation Average Trade Receivable 12.13 10.74 12.9%
(incl. GST)
7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in days) Total Operating Cost (incl. ~ Average Trade Payables 57.00 41.50 37.3% It has increased due to increase in average trade
GST) payable by 41%.
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) Net sales = Total sales - Working capital = Current (4.53) (11.59) -60.9% Ratio has improved due to decrease in working
sales return assets — Current liabilities capital on account of higher payables.
9 Net Profit ratio (%) Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - 3.3% 7.0% -3.7%
sales return
10 Return on Capital Employed (%) Earnings before interest and Capital Employed = 4.6% 10.9% -6.3%
taxes Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred Tax
Liability
11 Return on Investment (%) Interest (Finance Income)  Investment 3.8% -5.3% 9.1%

49 Additional information, as required under Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiaries

Name of the entity in the Group Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus total liabilities Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive
income income
As % of consolidated net Amount in lakhs As % of Amount in As % of consolidated | Amountin| As % oftotal | Amount in
assets consolidated lakhs other comprehensive lakhs comprehensive lakhs
profit or loss income income

Consolidated 100% 182,225.52 100% 7,394.72 100% 27.11 100% 7,421.83
Parent
Zuari Cement Limited 86.8% 158,092.09 80.0% 5,913.28 100% 27.11 80% 5,940.39
Subsidiaries Indian
Gulbarga Cement Limited 0.0% 25.39 10.5% 773.02 0% - 10% 773.02
Non-controlling Interest in all subsidiaries 13.2% 24,108.04 9.6% 708.42 0% - 9.5% 708.42

50 Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, provides that every Company having a paid-up
share capital of INR 100 million or more, shall mandatorily appoint a whole time Company Secretary. Mr. Shrinivas Harapanahalli, Company Secretary of the Company resigned from
the post of Company Secretary of the Company on 04 March 2022 and was relieved w.e.f. close of business hours on 04 April 2022. The Company is in the process of identifying a
suitable candidate to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation of Mr. Shrinivas Harapanahalli.
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51. Previous year figures

The financial statements as at and for the period ended March 31, 2021 were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants and previous period figures have
been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date

For S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Zuari Cement Limited

Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045 CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Rajeev K Saxena Jamshed Naval Cooper Vimal Kumar Jain
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 077974 DIN: 01527371 DIN: 09561918

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022 Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129 READ WITH RULE 5 OF

S.No.

Particulars

Name of the Subsidiary Company

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned

Reporting currency

Share Capital

Reserves & surplus

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Investments

Turnover*

Profit/(Loss) before taxation
Provision for taxation

Profit after taxation

Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income
Proposed Dividend

% of shareholding

*Gulbarga Cement Limited is yet to commence operations.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Zuari Cement Limited

CIN: U26942AP2000PLC050415

Jamshed Naval Cooper
Managing Director
DIN - 01527371

Vimal Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 18, 2022

COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Company

Gulbarga Cement Limited

31st March, 2022

INR

10,488.05

22,271.03

45,501.67

12,742.59

(901.87)

0.00

(901.87)

(901.87)

21.45%

Vimal Kumar Jain
Director
DIN: 09561918

INR Lakhs

Company

Gulbarga Cement Limited

31st March, 2021

INR

10,488.05

23,172.90

45,043.19

11,382.24

(1,630.67)

0.00

(1,630.67)

(1,630.67)

21.45%



